Vol. 34 No. 1 - 2

24

Jan. - Jun. 1997

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH

Official Journal of Institute of Public Health, Lahore





EDITORIAL COMMITTEE

Chief Editor Mahmuda Mubasher

Editor Ilyas Ahmad Faridi

Managing Editor Mubarak Jamal Mehdi

Assistant Editors Maqsood Ahmad Shaheena Manzoor



EDITORIAL BOARD

A. H. Awan				Lahore
Muhammad Iliyas				Karachi
Syed Mohsin Ali	- L.			Islamabad
Iftikhar A. Malik		· · ·		Rawalpindi
Muhammad Zahir Shah				Peshawar
Siraj-ul-Haq	100			Islamabad
Geofferey Carroll				London
Shamim Manzoor		44.		Lahore
M.A. Barzgar				WHO-Islamabad
Muhammad Akram Pervaz	142		-122	Lahore
Naeem-uddin Mian				Lahore

Correspondence: Editor, Pakistan Journal of Health, Institute of Public Health 6 - Birdwood Road, Off Jail Road, Lahore



Pakistan Journal of Health is indexed with the following International Cataloging Services :

- INDEX MEDICUS FOR WHO EASTERN MEDITERRANEAN REGION (IMEMR) W.H.O. EMRO - Alexandria, Egypt.
- UNRICH'S INTERNATIONAL PERIODICALS DIRECTORY R. R Bowker 121 Chanlon Rd. New Providence, N. J. 07974, USA.



Vol. 34 No. 1 - 2

Jan. - Jun. 1997

CONTENTS

EDITORIAL

n.,

Adult Female Screene During 1988-94	2
A Study of the Factors Influencing Tubal Ligation Procedures in a Rural Population of Rawalpindi District Musarat Ramzan, Ali Mohammad Mir	
Effect of Female Education on Family Size in an Urban Setting of Lahore Shaheena Manzoor, Rubina Malik	50
Correlation of Disease with Poor Solid Waste Management Practices in Sultan Park, Lahore: An Epidemiological Survey Amir Elahi Johri, Farkhanda Kokab, Faisal Qasmi	14
Tuberculosis Control Programme in Pakistan M. A. Khan, Muhammad Hussain Khan, Ayub Ali	20
Incidence of Malignancy in Patients Undergoing Cholecystectomy for Calculus Disease Khalid Javed Abid, Muhammad Azhar Majeed, Farrukh Mahmood, T. A. Shah	25
Bacteriological Contamination of Under Ground Water Supply of Sujan Pur, Multan : A Village using Soaked Pit Latrines Farkhanda Kokab, Amir Elahi Johri, Rashid Masood, Iqbal Ahmad Ch.	33
Child Mortality (Under - 5 Year) Socioeconomic Factor Naheed Humayun Sheikh	36
Drug Non - Compliance in Tuberculous Patients: Causes and Recommendations Ali I. Raja, A. S. Chaughtai, Nasir Saddique	41
Do Developing Countries Need "Hepatitis A" Vaccine? Abdul Jamil Choudhry	46
Systemic Lupus Erythematosus in Pregnancy Muhammad Arshad Chohan, Saima Sami	49
Pulmonary Tuberculosis Case Management by Private Medical Practitioners in Gowalmandi, Lahore Muhammad Abbas Qari, Maqsood Ahmad, Shazia Ishaq, Ayub Ali	53



EDITORIAL

PLEASE PARTICIPATE

The development of any country is basically based on the health of its people. Public Health is a discipline which determines the path ways to the health of people and is considered the back bone of health policy of any country. In the developed world the Public Health is prioritized among the top most and all the health policies are centralized by the Public Health programmes. Since the day of independence of Pakistan, we are also struggling towards a better health policy and now we want to achieve the global goal i.e. health for all by the year 2000. Certainly we want to achieve this goal but it is also a point to think that during this half century what we have improved in this sector. A comparison shows that we are adding very slowly the share for health in our national budget. Although we are emphasizing on health importance in every five years plan but the question is that how much of that plan is implemented.

The implementation and required improvement in Public Health is not only the responsibility of government sector but the integrated efforts of NGO's, private practitioners, environmentalists, health and safety personnel economists, journalists and philanthropists will be required for its practical execution. Through this issue I take the opportunity to request the learned perceivers to suggest the ways, means and policies for the best improvement of Public Health in Pakistan. At the same time the next issue will be containing the interviews of bonorable and respected ex-Principals/Deans and present Dean of this Institute commenting on Public Health achievements with reference to this Institute.

Participate in the discussion for the best Health of your generation.

Faridi



PREVALENCE OF BREAST CANCER IN ASYMPT ATIC ADULT FEMALE SCREENED DURING 1988-

11111111111

TARIQ PARVEZ

Radiotherapist, Sir Ganga Ram Hospital, Lahore

Summary

A study was conducted in Mumtaz Bakhtawar Memorial Trust Hospital, Lahore to find out the Prevalence of Breast Cancer in female adults asymptomatic for any breast problem, visiting the hospital for any other ailment. The study started in December, 1988 and completed its first 2,500 cases in December, 1994. In this study breast cancer were 0.2%, lumps 1% and breast abnormalities 2.5%.

Introduction

Epidemiology is the study of the distribution and determinants of disease frequency in human population¹. Its main contribution is in detection and quantification of the disease in the community. There are global variations in cancer incidence and prevalence due to many factors such as age, sex, race, time, socioeconomic class, martial status and geographical location. Such studies by revealing the pattern of diseases in population have provided many clues to cancer ctiology². Variation by age, area and time are often remarkable even allowing for fluctuation that might be expected as a result of and differences in diagnostic and reporting practices. Such studies are important to make an attempt to reduce over all mortality3.

Prevalence is the estimated number of persons with cancer who are alive at any time called as Point Prevalence or at sometime during a definite period called Period Prevalence. It is the burden of the disease in a community. Prevalence increases with the incidence and with the duration of the disease and decrease and decrease with the mortality and cure rate. Every cancer has its own geographical distribution.

Insurance policy of USA has shown a 28% reduction in mortality due to breast screening4. According to Hangers-on et al 98% breast cancers are detected by patient herself5. Prospective studies from Europe indicated that death rate from breast cancer decreased by 1/3 in a screened versus non-screened population⁶. There are risks associated with screening like false assurance,

undue biopsies and no benefit to women between ages from 40 to 49 years7. Mammography because of the radiation exposure has its potential risks4, All lumps should always be biopsics9.

The basic aim of the study was to assess the rate of breast cancer in the asymptomatic population studied and then suggestion for breast self examination and early detection of breast cancer.

Methodology

Two thousand five hundred female subjects age 15 years and above coming to Muintaz Bakhtawar Memorial Trust Hospital for any ailment except already diagnosed breast cancer cases were studied. This examination was made mandatory for all women of this category. This was done to increase the number of examination. Moreover, reluctant patients were motivated for this examination and told about the benefits of screening by the trained women Medical Officers dealing with these cases. The demographic characteristics, response to examination without motivation and later with motivation was also noted. In the examination both the breast were examined for any mass or abnormality, its size, shape, consistency, mobility, attachment to skin or fascia under lying, edema, dimpling or satellite nodules. Any abnormality of nipple, discharge or retraction, discoloration, thickening, reddening or erosion was detected. The palpability of axillary lymph nodes, their location, size, fixation was noted. The other lymph nodes like supraclavicular

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO. 1 - 2



or infraclavicular were also examined. For demographic characteristics and both breasts examination a performa was made, the lady doctors included in this study were instructed and provided a key for filling of the performa and conducting the examination. This was done to achieve uniformity in the result.

Mammography was advised to patients having any abnormality or lump in the breast or those above 45 years of age. For mammography the patients were sent to Sheikh Zayed hospital. Biopsy was advised to the patients having any abnormality or lump in the breast clinically or radiologically. The positive and doubtful cases were counter checked to remove any discrepancy and confirm the findings. All the lumpectomics were excisional done by the same surgeon and histopathology by the same histopathologist. Only two doubtful slides were counter checked by another pathologist.

Results

Out of the total 2500 female subjects 14.88% belonged to 15-20 years age group, 41.6% to 21-30 years age group, 27.6% to 31-40 years age group, 11.4% to 41-50 years age group and those above 50 years were 4.52%. In this study 93.88% were married, 2.28 were infertile. Response to initial examination was 77.28% but it increased to 98.76% after motivation.

On examination of breast (table 1), right breast was involved in 31 patients and left breast in 36 patients (one patient has bilateral involvement) 28 lumps were found in 25 patients (table 2). 45% lumps were present in the upper outer quadrant (table 3). 08 were less than 2cm, 12 between 02-05cm and 05 more than 5cm. All the lumps were mobile and no fixation to skin or underlying fascia. No abnormal discharge from the nipple of any surveyed female, only 21 female were lactating during examination in this study, two females had nipple eczema. Out of the whole lot, only one had supraclavicular laymph node enlarged. This female otherwise had no abnormality of both the breasts. No abnormality of their lymph nodes detected in other females. In this study 40 subjects were advised biopsy because of the lump or any suspicious nature of any abnormality (table 4). Only 25 subjects under went biopsy. Twenty came with the report. 15 were benign and five malignant. Out of five, 4 were infiltrated ductal carcinoma

BREAST CANCER IN ASYMPTOMATIC ADULT FEMALE

and one non-infiltrating intraductal carcinoma. Out of the five patients four under went mastectomy. In this study five subjects under went mammography. It was abnormal in four, two were radiologically benign and two were malignant.

Table 1 D	escription of A	bnomalities
-----------	-----------------	-------------

Patients Having Abnormality = 61 Patients Having Lumps = 25

Neg-r	oof Positiv Camber	e Females %age
Lumps	25 -	1.02
Accessary Breast	06	0.24
Scar mark previous Lumpecteon	11	0.45
Breast Eczema inflammation	14	0.69
Cracked Nipple	05	0.2
Total	61	2.6

Prevalence of Breast Cancer in Asymptomatic Female Adults Attending Mumtaz Bakhtawar Memorial Trust Hospital Lahore Screened During 1988-94.

Table 2 (a) Description of Abnormalities

	Abnormality	Right	Left
Α.	Lumps (total 28)	n	17
В.	Accessory Breast	03	03
C.	Scar Mark of Previous		
	Lumpectomy	06	05
D.	Breast Eczema; Inflammation	09	08
E.	Miscellaneous	02	03
	Total	31	36
	(B) Description of Lumps	14. A.	
	Description		Sin Ma
Α.	Unilateral	22	
B.	Bilateral	0.3	
C.	Single Swelling	20	
D.	Multiple Swelling	05	

TARIQ PARVEZ

Table 2	Description	of	Lumps	As	Observed	in
	Asymptomat	tic Fe	males (n	=25)		

12	(4)	
	Number of Positi	ve Females
	Number	%age
Unilateral	22	88
Bilateral	03*	12

Number of positive females Number %nge				
Single Swelling	20	80		
Multiple Swelling	05	20		

 II Subjects had Lumps on Right Side. 17 Subjects Had Lumps on Left Side.

Prevalence of Breast Cancer and Risk Factors Among Female Adults

Table 3	Location Wise Distribution of Lumps (n = 28)
	as observed in Asymptomatic Female

Site		Right Side	Left Side
Upper Outer quadrant		05	07
Upper inner quadrant		01	03
Lower outer quadrant		03	05
Lower inner quadrant		00	01
Multiple swelling		02	01
Total		11	17
Total =	28		
Patients with Lumps =	25		

Table 4 Biopsy Description of Asymptomatic Adults Female

-			
Biopsy		Frequency	
Α.	Biopsy Advanced	40	
В.	Biopsy Done	25	
C.	Biopsy Report-Benign	15	
D.	Malignant Tumour	05	
E.	Lost	20	

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO. 1 - 2

II. Description of Malignant Turnour

	A.	Infiltrating Duct Cell Carcinoma	04
	B.	Non Infiltrating Intraductal	01
III.	Ма	stectomy Description	
	Α.	Advised	05
	B.	Done	04
	C.	Refused	01
IV.	Ma	umography	
	Adv	ised All Persons with Act and	
	Risk	Factors or Abnormality	
	Res	ponse	05
	Nor	mal	UI
	Abn	ormal	04
	Ben	ign	02
	Mal	ignant	02
-		the second se	

Discussion

It has been observed that the risk factors in our society for cancer breast are different from those of the developed society. In our society most of the marriages are done at an early age, multiparity and breast feeding is very common but the incidence of breast cancer looks no less than the developed world. With these ideas we initiated this study, the aim has been to evaluate the prevalence of breast and than any recommendation for early detection in our setup.

From the data shown in table 5 it is obvious the internationally there are difference in the incidence and prevalence in the different parts of the world. Most of the differences could be either genetic or environmental as time and again it has been proved by migrant studies. The environmental factors broadly encompass anything that interact with humans including substances eaten, drunk and smoked, natural and man made ionizing radiation, work-place, exposure, drugs, aspects of life style such as sexual behaviour and substances present in air, water and food. 75-80% of all cancers are due to environmental factors. Although variation within countries are not as great as those seen internationally but still differences are there. Breast examination for cancer is normal part of health insurance policy in civilized world. We conducted this study to



h

evaluate the effectiveness of screening and detection of disease at an early stage. Another aim of the study was to indirectly educate the public for breast self examination and its importance.

Prevalence of Breast Cancer in Asymptomatic Adult 1988-94

Table 5 Frequency Distribution in Five Continents by Incidence Rate 100,000 and % Probability of Developing Breast Cancer Till Age 74 Years

Continents Incid	inents Incidence Rate	
Denmark	62.1	
	1.1.1.1.1.1	6.9
		8.8
		6.7
Columbia (CALI)	34.8	3.8
Japan (Miyagi)	22.0	2.3
	24.1	2.4
Segegal (Dakar)	11.8	1.3
Bowzealand	59.5	6.8
t al (10)		
	Denmark U.S.Seer White Black Columbia (CALI) Japan (Miyagi) India (Bombay Segegal (Dakar) Bewzealand	Denmark63.1U.S.Seer White82.7Black70.0Columbia (CALI)34.8Japan (Miyagi)22.0India (Bombay24.1Senegal (Dakar)11.8Bewzealand59.5

By observing the pattern of distribution in the different parts of the world one can understand that after observing the different factors which operate in the high incident area for one malignancy and either not operating or less operating in those areas of the world where these diseases are less common, recommendations can be made for the removal or reduction in the intensity of risk factors, there by advice for primary prevention. For secondary prevention i.e., early detection our experience in this study for asymptomatic subject is very encouraging, although under obligation (compulsion) but without any monitory expenditure.

It is our recommendation that the screening of breast will detect cancer cases in early stages and should be done by women medical officers in all the places and institutions wherever possible. This will not only detect the early cases but will also educate the female population for regular breast self examination.

Acknowledgement

I am extremely thankful to chairman Mumtaz Bakhtawar Memorial Trust Hospital, Lahore and lady doctors involved in this study with out whose help this study may have ben difficult. I am also thankful to Mr. Nasir inconstant for making this manuscript.

References

- Doll R.: Epidemiology of cancer, Cancer 45:2475-2485, 1980.
- Doll R., Peto R.: The cause of cancer: Quantitative estimates of available risks of cancer in the United States today, JNCI 66: 1191-1308, 1981.
- Schotten feld D, Multiple primary cancers. In Schotten feld D, Draumani JF Jr (Eds): cancer epidemiology and prevention, pp 1025-1033, Philadelphia WB saunder S, 1982.
- Shapiro. Strax P. Venet Wetal: Ten to fourteen year effects of Breast cancer screening on mortality. JNCI 69: 349-353, 1982.
- Haagensen CD, Cooley E, Kennedy C; Treatment of early memory carcinoma. A cooperative international study. Ann surg 157; 162-164, 1963.
- Tabar L: Fagerberg CJ, Gac A, etal. reduction in mortality from Breast cancer after mass screening with mammography; Randomized Trial from the Breast screening working group of the Swedish Board of health and welfare. Lancet 1985; 1:89-32.
- Miller AB, Risk benefit in Mass screening Programs for Breast Cancer. Sem Oncol. 5: 351-359, 1978.
- Bailer JC: Mammography, A Contrary Review. Ann Intern Med 85; 77-84, 1976.
- American cancer Society (ACS), cancer facts and figures, New York: ACS Ins 1989. P-10.
- Parkin DM, LaaraE, Muircs (1988a) Estimates of world wide frequency of sixteen major Camcers in 1980 INT T Cancer.



A STUDY OF THE FACTORS INFLUENCING TUBAL LIGATION PROCEDURES IN A RURAL POPULATION OF RAWALPINDI DISCIPLICATION OF RAWALPINDI DISCIP

MUSARAT RAMZAN, ALI MOHAMMAD MIR

Department of Community Medicine Rawalpindi Medical College, Rawalpindi

Summary

Based on the finding that there was a great unmet need for family planning in village Mowara. Tehsil Kahuta, District Rawalpindi, a family planning programme was launched with the assistance of a non-governmental organization. It was seen that female sterilization was the most popular method of contraception. A study was conducted during a period of one year during which all women who under went tubal ligation were interviewed. It was seen that the mean age of these women was 31.75 ± 2.79 S.D. They had mean number of 5.5 children ± 1.24 S.D. with an average 3.05 living male offspring (± 0.99 S.D.) 20% of the women were educated to at least the primary level while 90% of the husbands were educated. Knowledge about contraceptives was 65% while non use due to religious opposition was 40%. 55% of the women cited economic reasons for putting a stop to having any further children.

Introduction

Despite having been in existence for the past 33 years the Family Planning Programme of Pakistan has not made any significant progress in lowering the astronomical population growth rate¹.

Amongst the many factors attributed to the failure of the programme poor access to family planning services is seen as a crucial factor. According to the Pakistan Demographic and Health Survey 1991, coverage of family planning services in the urban areas is 54% while in the rural areas it is only 5%². The findings of the Pakistan Contraceptive Prevalence Survey P.C.P.S 1995 shows that the contraceptive prevalence rate is 18%³.

Lack of knowledge about contraceptives and family welfare outlets, restrictions on female mobility, objections from family and in-laws along with the paucity of family welfare centers are some of the reasons contributing towards the low prevalence rates.

It is seen that the maternal and infant mortality rates in Pakistan are amongst the highest in the region. Although the intimate relationship between family planning and maternal and child health is well understood, it is seen that the health facilities have not been fully utilized to provide Family Planning services.

It was in this background, to meet the need for providing family planning services in village Mowara Tchsil Kahuta, District Rawalpindi, a family planning programme in collaboration with a non-governmental organisation was initiated, in a Basic Health Unit of the Health Department.

The working of the programme provides a unique example of Public Private sector coordination. The programme had the following components. The Medical Officer Incharge of the Basic Health Unit along with his team comprising the Lady Health Visitor and the Trained Birth Attendant provided counseling and motivation. Family Planning contraceptives were provided by the N.G.O. Similarly clients who wanted to undergo sterilization were referred to the headquarters of the N.G.O situated in Rawalpindi, or to a type A sterilization clinic in one of the teaching hospitals in Rawalpindi. Follow up of these cases was carried out by the mobile teams of the N.G.O. It was soon realized that sterilization was the most popular method. After a period of one year study was conducted to assess the factors influencing the decision of the females who had



INFLUENCING TUBAL LIGATION PROCEDURES IN A RURAL POPULATION

undergone the tubal ligation procedure. The aim of the study was to analyse these factors and develop appropriate motivation and counseling strategies more in tune to the clients perceptions.

Materials and Methods

A descriptive qualitative study was conducted over a period of one year to assess those factors that influenced the decision and perception of the women who opted for sterilization. Using an open ended semi-structured questionnaire the following aspects were assessed.

- Socio-demographic characteristics,
- Pregnancy history,
- Contraceptive knowledge and use,
- Role of motivator,
- Reasons for having the operation and why it was not done before.

The study population was based on a non probability convenience sampling and included all women who had undergone tubal ligation during one year period (n=60). The study area included women residing in an area of 10 kms within the vicinity of Basic Health Unit.

Results

Table 1: Socio-demographic characteristics

	n=60 Percentage
Education	20%
Employment	5%
Educational status of	
females using contraceptives	66%
Educational status of husbands	90%
Two living male offspring	100%

Table 2: Contraceptive Use n = 60

Women already using contraceptives	15%	
Women who had used contraceptives in the past	20%	
Knowledge about contraceptive methods	65%	
Side effects as a reason for discontinuation	15%	
Religious opposition as a reason for not	40%	
adopting family planning earlier		

Table 3: Reasons for undergoing the operation n=60

Indifferent health.	20%
Economic reasons.	55%
Felt that family size was complete.	20%
Motivated by a well satisfied client.	40%
Motivated by the trained birth attendant.	60%

Table 4. Pregnancy history n=60

1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	Mean	S.D.
Age of women	31.75	±2.79
No. of children the g	5.5	±1.24
Age of youngers		
living child you in the	13.5 mths	±16.8
Age of eldest living child in year	12.7	±2.85
No. of children that died	0.45	±0.69
Male children	3.05	±0.99
Female children	2.5	±1.10

Socio-Demographic Factors

The study showed that only 20% of the females were educated. 5% were employed outside their homes. 90% of the husbands of these women were educated. All women lived within a vicinity of 10 kms from the center. In all cases it was seen that the women had two living male offsprings.

Role of Religion

40% of the women cited religious opposition from their spouses or relatives as a reason for not adopting family planning earlier.

Contraceptive Use

The study revealed that 15% of the women were using some sort of contraceptive. 20% had used contraceptives in the past. 65% of the women knew or had some knowledge about family planning methods. 15% cited complications or side effects of contraceptives as a reason for discontinuation.





MUSARAT RAMZAN, ALI MOHAMMAD MIR

Reasons For Having The Operation

20% females claimed indifferent health as a reason for putting a stop to having any further children. 55% of the women claimed that it was for economic reasons i.e., poverty or inability to make both ends meet that prompted them to have the operation. 20% claimed that they felt that their family was complete. In all cases the women had two living male offspring. It was seen that 40% of the women had been motivated by a well satisfied client. While 60% were motivated by the Traditional birth attendants working in the Health facility. The study shows that the mean age of the women was 31.75 ±2.79 S.D. The women having a mean number of 5.5 children ±1.24 S.D. considered that their family was complete. On an average each woman had at least three living male offsprings (±0.99 S.D.)

Discussion

The study carried out in village Mowara Tehsil Kahuta District Rawalpindi reaffirms the findings of the Pakistan Demographic and Health Survey 1990-92 and the Pakistan Contraceptive Prevalence Survey (PCPS) 19953 which shows that female sterilization remains one of the most favoured method of contraception. According to the P.C.P.S (1995)³ the figure is 5%, which is the highest for any form of contraception being used. Many reasons could be ascribed for this popularity. This includes the fact that very few service delivery outlets exist which are mostly out of reach and cannot be easily accessed. Quality of services delivery outlets exist which are mostly out of reach and cannot be easily accessed. Quality of services available are generally poor and therefore women, especially in the rural areas find it difficult to visit these centers on a regular basis and so opt for a one time method. The disadvantage of the method is that it cannot be used effectively in lowering the population growth rate, since women in this category are usually old and already have a large family. The solution lies in encouraging younger couples having small families to undergo sterilization. Concurrently it is also important that the government should expand the currently limited access to female sterilization facilities, while at the same time promoting long acting and temporary methods. At present 80 type A reproductive health services centers are located

within a district or subdistrict hospital. It is essential that these facilities should be made available at least at the rural health center level.

The Mowara study has revealed that there is a large unmet need for family planning. The main cause is the unavailability of these services. At present there are 1300 Family Welfare Centers in the country which means that there is one for every 14000 coupled valid-sight the intimate relationship between maternal and infant health and the use of family planning methods is well established yet government health centers are not being properly utilized for providing these services. The major problems faced at the health outlets are, lack of properly trained staff especially in motivation and counsching, inchequate and of contraceptives. Poor irregular supply coordination between the health and population welfare departments. By involving the health facilities in provision of family planning services, access to these facilities will increase by about 4 times. It would also help in improving the reproductive, maternal and infant health.

The study also highlights the role of client education materials, proper counseling and motivation techniques. It has been observed that there is an enormous need for training family planning staff both at the health centers and family welfare centers in counselling and motivation techniques. Similarly there is also a need for developing an insight into the clients beliefs and Accordingly, messages perceptions. were developed, that facilitated women in making a of such ал important nature. decision Misconceptions and undue fears about the procedure were allayed by providing details in a simple manner. Since woman had to obtain prior written permission from their husbands, the role of male counselling and motivation became very important. The health and socio-economic benefits of having a small family were explained to them in detail.

The need for greater collaboration between the public and private sector is also highlighted by the study. It is exigent that this must more commonly be put into practice especially when the government has already articulated that the nongovernmental sector is an integral component in its efforts to achieve the national planning coverage.

The fruitful collaboration between the two sectors can help in improving access and quality of



portant factor in the uptake of contraceptives. Tality is influenced by such factors as the lability and range of contraceptive methods, technical competence of the provider, ibility of follow up services, the interpersonal tion ship between the providers and the clients the information provided to the prospective

the involvement of the community in the ing management of the programme is also esse tial for the success and smooth running of programme. As Wolfson points, no programme whose purpose is to change the way people lead their daily lives is likely to take hold and become sustainable in the long run unless it has the active support of the community it is intended to serve. In the case of family planning sicre the aim is to bring about a behavioral change of a particularly personal and intimate nature such support is clearly crucial6. In village Mowara before initiating the programme it was made sure that the cooperation and assistance of the village religious leaders and notables of the area had been obtained, after explaining and convincing them about the health rationale of family planning.

The importance of the study lies in the fact that it helped in understanding local attitudes, perceptions and needs of the people regarding family planning. Based on these findings newer strategies could be adopted for popularising family planning that were related to the needs and aspirations of the people. For the success of any such programme it is felt that such studies are extremely necessary as they can provide important information which might otherwise be ignored or not taken into account.

References

- Hashmi S (1991) Multisectoral Review of the Population Welfare Programme of Pakistan Report No. 1 Islamabad: United Nations Population Fund.
- National Institute for Population Studies (1992) Pakistan Demographic and Health Survey 1990-91 Islamabad: N.I.P.S.
- Government of Pakistan, Ministry of Population Welfare and Population Council (1995). Pakistan Contraceptive Prevalence Survey 1994-95: Basic Findings, Islamabad: Population Council.
- Rosen JE Conly Sr (1996) Pakistan's Population Programme The Challenge Ahead. Washington D.C. Population Action International.
- Bruce and Jain (1991) Improving the Quality of Care through Operations Research in Seidman M., Horn MC(eds) Operations Research Helping Family Planning Programmes Work Better, New York; Wiley Liss.
- Wolfson M (1987) Community Action for Family Planning; a comparison of six project experiences, Paris; O.E.C.D.



2

EFFECT OF FEMALE EDUCATION ON FAMILY SIZE IN AN URBAN SETTING OF LAHORE

SHAHEENA MANZOOR, RUBINA MALIK

Department of Maternal and Child Health, Institute of Public Health, Lahore

Summary

Cross sectional survey was conducted to see the impact of female literacy on fertility in an urban setting of Lahore in approximately 12,000 population. Systematic random sampling was done and 603 respondent were selected, they were divided in 4 categories of educational level as Illiterate, Undermatric, Matric and above, Graduates and above. The effect of educational level of respondent (wife) on the family size was studied and some relationship with educational status of husband was also studied. Results were analyzed statistically and it was found that education of wife as well as husband had significant impact on lowering the family size.

Introduction

Population of Pakistan at the time of independence was 32.5 million. To day it has grown to 140.5 million (Hakim 1994), almost more than four fold increase since independence.

The annual population growth rate of Pakistan according to the planning commission is 2.9%, and by The State of the World children 1997 is 3.3%. With this growth rate Pakistan stands 7th in the World Population Order.

Female literacy rate of Pakistan is 24% and the male literacy rate is 50% (The State of World's children 1997).

Literacy rate of a country has an impact on the total fertility rate. Pakistan having a low literacy rate of 36.8% (Manzoor K. et al, 1991) has high total fertility rate of 5.9 per woman.

Primary schools in Pakistan are intended to provide education for all children, from the ages of five years or slightly more to the ages of ten years. However, almost 40% of Pakistani children have no access to education and only 50% of children admitted to grade - 1 continue upto grade - 5 (Central Bureau of Education, 1990).

Primary School enrollment ratio of male and females in Pakistan is 38% for girls and 57% for boys. The secondary School enrollment ratio is 28% for boys and 13% for girls. Girls are less likely to be enrolled than boys, due to cultural and socioeconomic factors, exacerbated by shortage of female teachers.

Material and Methods

The aim of study was to collect base line data regarding Female literacy and to see its effect on fertility in an urban setting of Lahore. The study was conducted at Panjmahal road and periphery of Shahjamal colony in about 12,000 population.

From each of these areas 1000 houses were selected. They were numbered in order starting from one end. Every 3rd house was taken for study purpose, 308 houses were taken from each area making a total of 616 houses. This constituted about 30% of the whole population. The study population comprised of all married females of reproductive age group i.e from 15 -49 years. Total No. of married females was 2000 or of which approximately a 30% sample was taken. Systematic random sampling method was used.

Study Parameters and Operational Definitions

In this study, the effect of literacy on family size was studied. Literacy was defined operationally as the ability of a person to read and write with clear understanding in any language.

Education

By education was meant the number of years of formal schooling. It ranged from no schooling all the way up to the level of postgraduation.

For the study purpose the term literate is used for those who had some formal schooling.

Hypothesis

Literacy level is inversely related to fertility.

Subhypothesis

If both partners are literate, then number of children will be less as compared to:

- 1. If both partners are illiterate.
- 2. If wife is literate and husband is illiterate.
- 3. If wife is illiterate and husband a literate.

Sampling

Systematic random sampling method was used in the study. With this method every third house was included in the study. Out of 616 households 13 were excluded because they did not fulfill the eligibility criteria.

Eligibility Criteria

Married women aged 15-49 years with children. Those households were excluded which had no children, children 'without mothers, husbands with two wives and widows residing in them.

Family Size

The family was considered small when the couple had 3 or less children and large where the couple had 4 or more children.

Each household was a sample unit and females from each sampling unit were interviewed. The educational status of females was divided into 4 main categories, illiterate, undermatric, matric and above and graduate and above. It was expected from this sample that adequate number of units would be available to draw significant results. The questionnaire was a mix of open and close ended questions. It was pretested and amendments were made.

EFFECT OF FEMALE EDUCATION ON FAMILY SIZE

Methodology

5-6 mothers were interviewed / day. The filled in proformas were re-examined and if required the respondents were revisited the next day. Data was tabulated and analyzed manually with the help of a statistician.

Results / Discussion

The literacy rate of Pakistan for population of 10 years and above is quoted as 48.9% for males and 23.5% for females (The State of the World's Children 1997) where as the literacy rate of study population among females was 61.2% and it was 74.13% in males.

Table 1	Literacy Rate	
	Pakistan	Study Populati
Male	48.9	74.13
Female	23.5	61.20

In the study population it was found that out of 603 females, 234 were illiterate and 369 literate.

Table 2 Distribution of Children By the Educational Status of Respondent

Respondent's Educational Level	Number of Respondent's	of Children	Mean No. of Children
Illiterate	234	1332	5.69
Under matric	180	657	3.65
Matric & Above	150	423	2.82
Graduate & Abo	ve 39	90	2.31
Total	603	2502	4.15

The total number of children born to 234 illiterate women was 1332 with mean number of children as 5.69. 180 under matriculate respondents had 657 children with a mean number of 3.6 and 150 matric and above respondents had 423 children with a mean of 2.82 and 39 graduates and above had 90 children with a mean of 2.31. It



SHAHEENA MANZOOR RUBINA MALIK

is obvious from this detail that as the level of education increases mean number of children decreases thus strengthening the hypothesis that is there is an inverse relationship between literacy and fertility.

Distribution of mean number of children was also analyzed, where the respondent was illiterate, under matric, matric and above and graduate and above with husbands having different categories of education, as seen from table 3 and 4.

Table 3 Number of children of Illiterate Respondents with Different Educational Status of Husband.

Responde Education		Husband's Educatioonal	No. of	Mean No.
Level	No.	Level (Children	Children
Illiterate	147	Illiterate	915	6.22
Illiterate	57	Under Matric	276	4.84
Illiterate	27	Matric & Abov	c 129	4.77
Illiterate	3	Graduate & Abo	wc 12	4.00
Total	234		1332	5.69

Table 4 Number of Children of Undermatriculate Respondents with Different Educational Status of Husband

Under Matric	75	Matric & Above	- SM	3.96
Under Matric	45	Graduate & Abov		2.53
Under Matrie	09	Illiterate	45	5.00
nder Matrie	51	Under Matric	201	3.94
Respondant's Educational Level	No.	Husband's I Educational Level	Number of	Mean No. of

Table No. 4 shows that nine and the ic respondents had illiterate husbands with in number of children as 5.00 compared to 12 der matric respondents who had under mourte and matric and above husbands with mean number of children as 3.9 whereas 45 respondents had graduate and above husbands with mean number of children as 2.53.

Table no. 5 shows that none of the matric and above respondents had illiterate while nine had undermatric husbands with 3.00 mean number of

Table 5 Number of children of Matric and Above Respondents with Different Educational Status of Husband.

Respondent's Educational-Level	No.	Husband's Educatioonal Level	No. of Children	Mean No. of Children
Matric & Above	0	Illiterate	0	0
Matric & Above	09	Under Matric	27	3.00
Matric & Above	96	Matric & Above	297	3.09
Matric & Above	45	Graduate & Above	99	2.20
Total	150		423	2.82

children and 96 respondents had matric and above husbands having 3.09 mean number of children and 45 respondents had graduate and above husbands with a mean of 2.20 children.

It is clear from the above two tables that if both the partners had some formal schooling mean number of children was less similarly with increasing level of education mean number of children decreased conforming with our hypothesis i.e. there is an inverse relationship between literacy and fertility.

Table number 6 shows the distribution of number of children of graduate and above respondents with different educational level of husband. 36 respondents of graduate and above qualifications who were married to husbands of graduate and above qualification had 2.33 mean



Respondent's Educational Level	No.	Husband's Educatioonal Level	No. of Children	Mean No. of Children
Graduate & Above	0	Illiterate	0	0
Graduate & Above Graduate & Above	0	Under Matric	0	0
Graduate & Above	3	Matric & Above	6	2.00
Staduate & Above	36	Graduate & Above	84	2.33
Total	39		90	2.31

Table 6 Number of children of Graduate and Above Respondents with Different Educational Level on Husband.

number of children which is self explanatory that if both partners were highly educated they had a clear concept of small family size,

Table /	Distribution of Respondents b	v the	level	of	
	Education and Family size	eo ane		9	

Respondent's Educational level	Small Family	Large Family	Total
Illiterate	78	156	234
Literate	191	178	369
Total	269	337	603

Table 8 Distribution of Respondents by the level of Education and Family size

Respondent's Educational level	Small Family	Large Family	Total
Illiterate	52	104	156
Literate	262	185	447
Total	314	289	603

The total number of respondents were and the into two groups literates and illiterates and the number of children were grouped into small family and large family as seen from table no. VII. 156 illiterate respondents had large families and 78 had small families where as in the literate group 178 respondents had large families and 191 had small families. Chi square test was applied which showed significant difference in the number of families in both groups thus showing that education has an impact on reducing the family size.

Similarly table number no. 8 shows that 104 illiterate respondents had large families and 52 had small families while 185 literate respondents had large families and 262 had small families. Chi square test was applied which showed a significant difference in the number of families in both groups meaning that education has a positive impact on reducing family size.

References

- Hakim A. Basic Indicators, demographic and socioeconomic variables. National Institute of Population Studies, Islamabad 1994: 2: 4: 7.
- Manzoor K. Family Welfare Marketing Research. Working Paper No. 35, National Institute of Population Studies, Islamabad 1997 ; 7.
- The State of the World's Children, UNICEF New York 1997. Oxford University Press: 7.
- Central Bureau of Education, Islamabad. Report 1990: 10.

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO. 1 - 2



CORRELATION OF DISEASE WITH POOR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PRACTICES IN SULTAN PARK, LAHORE: AN EPIDEMIOLOGICAL SURVEY

AMIR ELAHI JOHRI, FARKHANDA KOKAB, FAISAL QASMI Institute of Public Health and World Wide Fund for Nature-Pakistan

Summary

An epidemiological survey was conducted to see the correlation of disease with poor solid waste management practices in Sultan Park, an urban slum of Lahore Cantonment. Periodic interviews and discussions with civic authorities, community leaders, area councilors and active social workers were arranged which were helpful in executing the project. A study was conducted of 50 household units. It was observed that 42 (84%) of the population studied had symptoms of respiratory, gastrointestinal and urinary tract.

Introduction

The garbage collection services are inadequate or non-existent in most residential areas of developing cities; approximately 30%-50% of the solid waste generated within urban centers is left uncollected¹. It accumulates on streets and in open spaces between houses, causing or contributing to serious health problems. The shabby households suffer most, since it is overwhelming in these areas of cities that there are no services to collect garbage or services are very inadequate².

Garbage placed uncollected encourages flybreeding, and harbor other disease causing germs that transmit infection. This garbage also blocks drainage channels, increasing health problems³.

The problems of solid waste management in our urban dwellings are complex and manifold. The varied nature of the wastes, mushroom development of urban settlements, funding limitations and shortage of trained and skilled personnel, improper applications of appropriate and convenient technologies for handling such wastes lead to these grave consequences. Due to these reasons, solid wastes are not being handled adequately and the land pollution is reaching alarming proportions. Open dumps are commonly found in the citics and on the street sides. In all major cities of the country the rate of solid waste collection is far less than the rate of its generation and as a result, around 20% to 49% of the waste is left uncollected¹. The uncollected rubbish is

disposed of in the adjoining low lying areas, vacant plots or is partially thrown in sewers causing their blockade.

Inadequate collection of solid wastes has significant potential to effect the human health as these wastes are an established source of infectious diseases. In addition their improper disposal may give rise to breeding places for rats, flies and other vermin that serve as passive vectors and can cause serious environmental health hazards. Such a situation may also give rise to land, air and water pollution problems. It thus becomes absolutely necessary that solid wastes are properly handled and safely disposed of.

Materials and Methods

Sultan Park, a settlement of 400 households was selected for the survey. This locality has approximate population of 3500 people and is divided into eleven lanes. This ill planned section without any technical guidance from the government agencies is facing many environmental problems and has been for a long time deprived of civic amenities.

Periodic interviews and discussions with civic authorities, community leaders, area councilors and active social workers were arranged which were helpful in executing this project.

The discussions with the local community leaders brought forward a good deal of original thinking towards the solution of the problem.

A study was conducted of 50 households units of that area. This gives 12.5% coverage on randomly selected basis. A questionnaire was developed to collect data. Surveyors were trained, and house to house survey was conducted. Free clinics were established in the community on regular basis to see the common ailments in the community. These clinics helpcd communicating the message of promoting health and preventing disease. They were also explained in detail about the safe practices regarding personal and municipal hygiene, and describing them about the health hazards of improper solid waste management practices.

Three cleanliness days were observed in this area with the help of Lahore Cantonment Board (LCB) and local community workers. A bacteriological laboratory was engaged to do the air sampling for bacteria found in the air. The sample was collected before the cleanliness day when the garbage was lying open and then the sample was collected after the cleanliness job.

Results

All the data obtained was fed into the computer and analyzed using d-Base III software package.

Age distribution is from 5 to 64 years with the mean of 34.5 and standard deviation of ± 2.35 .

Table 1 shows the age and sex distribution of the study population. There are 31 (62%) males and 19 (38%) females. There are 7 (14%) individuals upto the age of 6 years, 6(12%) above the age of 5 years, 8 (16%), 10 (20%), 11 (22%), 8(16%) belongs to the age group 11-20 years, 21-30 years, 31-40 years, 41-50 years respectively.

Table 1: Age and Sex Distribution of Study population

Age group	Males	Females		Total
Up to 10 years	3	4	7	14%
11-20 years	5	3	8	16%
21-30 years	8	2	10	3975
31-40 years	6	5	11	5%
41-50 years	5	3	8	1672
51 and above	4	2	6	15.55
Total (31	(62%) 19	(38%)	50	100%

GI = Gastrointestinal tract symptoms: RT = Respiratory symptoms: UT = Urinary tract symptoms

Table 2 shows the distribution pattern in various occupational groups. 6 (12%) are laborer, 17 (34%) are self employed, this includes the business person, and 27 (54%) are employee of public and private sector. 8(16%) of the study population was symptom free where as 42 (84%) had symptoms of gastrointestinal (GI), urinary tract (UT) and respiratory tract (RT). 5 (83.4%) of the laborers, 14 (82.4%) of the self employed and 23 (85.2%) of the employed were symptomatic. Of these having symptoms 9 (21.4%) had GI symptoms, 26 (62%) had RT symptoms, and 7 (16.6%) had UT symptoms.

Occupation	Symptom for	ree	With	symptoms		Grand total
	in the second	GI	RT	UT	Total	
Laborer	1 (16.6%)	1	3	1	5 (83.4%)	6 (12%)
Self employed	3 (17.6%)	3	9	2	14 (82.4%)	17 (34%)
Employee	4 (14.8%)	5	14	4	23(85.2%)	27 (27%)
Total	8 (16%)	9 (21.4%)	26 (62%)	7 (16.6%)	42 (84%)	50 (100%)

Table 2: Distribution of symptoms observed in various occupational groups

Table 3 shows the distribution of symptoms according to gender. It shows that 29(85.3%) of the males and 13(81.2%) of the females are having symptoms. Of these symptomatic, 12(28.6%) had GI symptoms, 22(52.4%) had RT symptoms, and 8(9%) had UT symptoms.



AMIR ELANI JOHRI, FARKHANDA KOKAB, FAISAL QASMI

Gender	Symptom f	hee	With s	ymptoms		Grand total
		GI	RT	UT	Total	
Male	5 (14.7%)	9	15	5	29 (85.3%)	7.2 10000
Female	3 (18.8%)	3	7	3	13 (81 272)	10 (32%)
Total	8 (16%)	12 (28.6%)	22 (52.4%)	8 (9%)	42 (84%)	50 (100%)

Table 3: Distribution of symptoms according to gender

Table 4 shows distribution of symptoms according to the marital status. 17 (34%), 21 (41%), 7 (14%), and 5 (10%) of the study population is unmarried, married, widowed, and divorced respectively. 4 (23.5%) of the unmarried population is symptom free and 13 (76.5%) is symptomatic. Among the married 2 (9.5%) symptom free and 19 (90.5%) are symptom the symptomatic population 10 (23.4 and 1 symptoms, 26 (61.9%) had RT symptoms. 6 (14.2%) had UT symptoms.

Table 4: Distribution of symptoms according to the marital status

Marital status	Symptom	free	With s	symptoms		Grand total
		GI	RT	UT	Total	
Unmarried	4 (23.%)	3	8	2	13 (76.5%)	17 (34%)
Married	2 (9.5%)	5	12	3	20 (90.9%)	22 (42%)
Widowed	1 (16.7%)	1	4	1	6 (85.7%)	7 (14%)
Divorced	1 (25%)	1	4	0	3 (75%)	4 (10%)
Total	8 (19%)	10 (24%)	26 (61.9%)	6 (14.2%)	42 (84%)	31 - W

Table 5 shows the distribution of the study population according to the number of persons living in the house where less than 6 individuals are living 2 (22.2%) are symptom free, 7 (77.8%) are symptomatic 4 (50%), 4(66.6%) of the people in the house with members 7-10, 11-14, respectively are symptomatic. The number are the number of family members in more than 14 all the study subjects are symptomatic. Of these symptomatic 10 (23.8%) had GI symptoms, 24 (57.1%) had RT symptoms, and 8 (19%) had UT symptoms.

Table 5: Distribution of symptoms according to the number of persons living in the house

Persons living in the house	Symptom	free	With	symptoms		Grand total
		GI	RT	UT	Total	
12	2 (25%)	2	4	1	7 (77.8%)	9 (18%)
Up to 6	4 (50%)	Ō	3	1	4 (50%)	8 (16%)
7-10	2 (25%)	1	3	0	4 (66.6%)	6 (12%)
11-14	0	2	5	2	9 (100%)	9 (18%)
15-18 19-22	0	3	4	2	8 (100%)	8 (16%)
23 and above	ŏ	ž	4	2	8 (100%)	8 (16%)
Fotal	8 (19%)	10 (23.8%)	24 (57.1%)	8 (19%)	42 (84%)	50 (100%)

PANISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO. 1 - 2



Table 6 shows relationship of symptoms with number of living rooms available in the house. It shows that as the numbers of the living rooms in the houses increase, the presence of symptoms decreases. Again RT symptoms are predominant counting 26 (61.9%) and then GI and UT are after these.

Numbers of rooms	Symptom free		With :	symptoms		Grand total
in the house		GI	RT	ហ	Total	
	0	3		1	9 (100%)	9 (18%)
2	0	2	7	1	10 (100%)	10 (20%)
1	2 (25%)	2	4	1	7 (77.7%)	9 (18%)
4	1 (12.5%)	1	4	2	7 (87.5%)	8 (16%)
s	0	1	2		4 (100%)	4 (8%)
6	0	0	1	3	1 (100%)	1 (2%)
7	0	0	Û	0	0	0
R	1 (12.5%)	1	0	0	2 (66.6%)	3 (6%)
9	2 (25%)	0	0	0	0	2 (4%)
10	2 (25%)	0	0	0	1 (33.3%)	3 (6%)
Total	8 (19.0%)	10 (23.8%)	26 (14.2%)	6 (14.2%)	42 (84%)	50 (100%)

Table 6:	Relationship of symptoms with	number of living root	n available in the house
----------	-------------------------------	-----------------------	--------------------------

Table 7 shows that with the increasing levels of education the presence of symptoms decreases.

Education level	Symptoms free		With symptoms		
Eugention rever		GI	RT	UT	1.1
Detroite	1	2	11	1	15
Primary	Construction in the local designation	2	6	2	11
Middle	1		5	1	9
Secondary	A suit rate and succession		5	1	8
Intermediate	1	1	2	2	7
Bachelor	3	0	2	2	
Total	8	6	29	7	50

Table 7:	Relationship of	symptoms with	level of	<i>education</i>
----------	-----------------	---------------	----------	------------------

Table 8 shows the area from where the air sample was collected, which pathogens were isolated, and there counts before and after the cleaning operation. These results show that after the cleaning operation, there was a remarkable reduction in the bacterial count in the air.





AMIR ELAHI JOHRI, FARKHANDA KOKAR, FAISAL QASMI

M

one day after cleaning operation					
Area / land	Microorganisms	Plate counts before clean up operation	Plate counts after clean up operation	Percentage reduction	
Sultan Park	E.Coli	8	1	87.5%	
lane 6	Bacillus Sp	65	35	46.0%	
o an over en	Staph. aureus	36	6	83.0%	
	Neisseria Sp	10	8	20.0%	
	Diphtheriods	30	20	13.0%	
	Micro cocci	10	4	ം0.0%	
	Total	161	74	54%	
Sultan Park	E.Coli	6	2	66.0%	
lane 6	Bacillus Sp	26	14	46.0%	
	Staph. aureus	6	2	66.0%	
	Neisseria Sp	74	0	100.0%	
	Diphtheriods	20	0	100.0%	
14-13 L	Micro cocci	3	3	00.00%	
	Total	135	21	84.0%	
ump site in	E.Coli	1	0	100.5%	
idential area	Bacillus Sp	58	30	48.0%	
sultan park	Staph. aureus	12	1	91.0%	
one of the second of the	Neisseria Sp	15	3	80.0%	
	Diphtheriods	50	0	100.0%	
	Micro cocci	4	0	100.0%	
	Total	140	34	76.0%	

Table 8: Bacterial counts of air pollution one day before disposal and cleanliness operation and then bacterial counts

Discussion

Integrated solid waste management involves using a combination of techniques and programs to manage the municipal waste stream. It is based on the fact that the waste stream is made up of distinct components that can be managed and disposed of separately. An integrated system is to be designed to address a specific set of local solid waste management problems, and its operation is based on local resources, economics, and environmental impacts.

There have been some reports showing a positive association between poor solid waste management practices and adverse health effects2. Many populations in the poor urban areas are regularly exposed to garbage lying outside their houses or very near to their premises, providing

compared to the less number of people (table 5), because these houses are congested and lead to causation of different symptoms. It is also reported that symptoms were more frequent in the families

whose houses had less number of rooms as

breeding places for different kinds of disease causing bacteria, but there have been few studies

The present study has shown a significant

correlation between prevalence of gastrointestinal,

respiratory, and urinary tract symptoms and

exposure to solid waste that lies on the road side

or railtrack side in this community and open plots.

symptoms is seen in persons of houses with

increasing number of inhabitants. So families with

large number of members are liable to get sick as

The high prevalence rate of different

of the effect of such exposure on health.

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO. 1 - 2

CS CamScanner

compared to more number of rooms (table 6). The education level also effects the disease pattern. It is shown (table 7) that with the increasing levels of education, the presence of symptoms decrease.

The table 8 explains that there was remarkable reduction in the bacterial count after cleanliness operation. E.Coli and Staph aureus were the major culprit to cause disease and they also played a major role in causing symptoms of respiratory, gastrointestinal, and urinary tract. The results show that there is 60-70% reduction of these bacteria in the air, so it is defined that by reducing the garbage, the bacterias present in the air will be curtailed.

Conclusions

The results indicate that we are confronting to a very a serious problem of poor solid waste management, which is leading to adverse health effects on human population of that area. This scenario is not shabby rather it has reached alarming stage where we need to do something for our present and future generations. The disease causing bacteria are prevalent in that area. It is obvious that persons with large number of family members are more vulnerable to get sick. So it is inferred that if we can solve our solid waste problem in this community we can reduce the incidence and prevalence of disease in that area. Tgtrybherefore it is the utmost need of the day to have very comprehensive and vigilant system for solid waste unpagement in this area.

References

- Our Planet, Our Health, Report of World Health Organization (WHO) Commission on Health and Environment, Geneva, 1992
 Nadok mathematication of Mathematication
- Nadakavukaren A, Man and Environment, A Health Perspective, Third Edition
 Moeller, D, W. Environment, A Health
- Moeller, D W, Environmental Health, Harvard University Press, 1992
- Decision-Makers Guide To Solid Waste Management, United States Environmental Protection Agency, EPA/530-SW-89-072, November 1989.
 Miller, T. L. L.
- 5. Miller T J, Living in the Environment, Seventh Edition



TUBERCULOSIS CONTROL PROGRAMME IN PAKISTAN

MUHAMMAD AMIR KHAN, MUHAMMAD HUSSAIN KHAN, AYUB ALI Association for Social Development, Islamabad. Directorate of TB Control, Islamabad. Institute of Public Health, Lahore

Summary

The purpose of this article is to present an overview of tuberculosis control programme in Pakistan, with special emphasis on the scope and limitations of envisioned roles of the key factors.

1. Disease Burden

Tuberculosis is an ancient disease that has long been a significant public health challenge in the world and remains a significant health problem in developing countries¹. Since early 1990s as many as 16 million cases of tuberculosis have been reported. Each year, 8 million new cases (one half of which are infectious) and 3 million deaths occur due to the disease². Tuberculosis causes 26 percent of avoidable adult deaths in the developing world³ and one million deaths each year in South Asia. Tuberculosis was declared a "global emergency" by World Health Organization in April 1993.

According to Dollen's estimate, incidence of tuberculosis in Pakistan is 8 / 100,000 per year⁴. WHO estimates more than 300,000 of new cases of tuberculosis occurring in Pakistan every year⁵, and if effective tuberculosis control programme is not launched on an emergency basis, there will be 4.2 million cases of tuberculosis by the year 2005.

2. Introduction To Ntp6:

2.1 Structure

Responsibility for Pakistan's tuberculosis control programme rests with the federal and provincial governments. At the federal level, National TB control board and federal directorate of TB control act as bodies responsible for formulating the policies and coordinating the tuberculosis control activities in Pakistan. In the provinces, the suggested provincial TB control boards and TB Coordinators are to be responsible for implementing the NTP policies, while the District TB Co - ordinators would coordinate TB control activities at district level.

2.2 Goal / Aims

The overall aim of the programme is to reduce mortality, morbidity and the transmission of tuberculosis.

- For individual patients: to cure their disease, quickly restore their ability to perform activities of daily life, and allow them to remain within their family and community;
- For a community: to decreate the spread of tuberculosis infection in the community and by this, to hasten the sappearance of this disease from society.

2.3 Objectives

The major objectives are to:

- increase the cure rate of diagnosed new sputum smear - positive pulmonary cases to at least 85% and
- increase case detection (once cure rates of detected cases has reached 85%) to 70% of the estimated incidence by the year 2000.

2.4 Strategy

The strategy for tuberculosis control in Pakistan is to provide adequate and efficient treatment, i.e., short-course chemotherapy (SCC) to, at least, all smear positive TB cases identified. Within the next 5 years, SCC will be implemented country - wide in a phased manner. Proper case management conditions, which includes directly observed therapy (DOT) will be maintained. Initially thest guidelines for the NTP and directly observed SCC are being introduced as small demonstration projects in selected sites, in each province of the country. Based on the success of these demonstration sites, judged by sputum-smear conversion and cure rates, the project will be expanded gradually throughout the country.

2.5 Activities

In order to implement this strategy effectively and achieve the above objectives, the main activities of the programme are the following:

- ensure effective chemotherapy to all patients diagnosed for the recommended duration of 8 months;
- promote early detection of sputum smearpositive pulmonary cases on the basis of sputum smear examination;
- establish a network of laboratories (1 in each RHC / THQ) and a system for ensuring quality of sputum smear microscopy;
- organize treatment delivery as close to a patient's home as possible and supervision of programme activities at various levels of the system;
- introduce a standard system of registration and reporting;
- ensure continuous drug supply by establishing a system for national procurement, storage, delivery and monitoring of anti - tuberculosis drugs at various levels of the system;
- monitor the results of treatment and evaluate progress of the programme by means of quarterly cohort analysis;
- provide continuous training for all staff involved in the programme at various levels of the system;
- strengthen cooperation and coordination between NGOs and bilateral donors involved in the tuberculosis control programme;
- coordinate tuberculosis control activities with other PHC activities being carried

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO 1 - 2

out in the country, naperially EPF and other disease control programmics

AND A DESCRIPTION OF A

 carry out research programmen to improve the NTP.

3. Envisioned Role of Key Actors : Scope & Limitations

3.1 Federal TB Control Directorate:

The Federal Directorate has the key role in: a) planning, coordinating and supporting TB control activities in the country, b) developing guidelines, manuals, education and other materials, c) offering training, d) designing and conducting research to identify better ways and means of controlling TB in the country, and e) ensuring availability of drugs and print materials at provincial level, only during first few years of the proposed programme.

In the last two years, the Federal Directorate, with collaboration of other agencies, has made an encouraging progress in making TB control effective in Pakistan. The Federal Directorate, through technical support of WHO, has produced:

- (a) National Plan for Tuberculosis Control, which is under consideration of relevant ministries.
- (b) National guidelines for tuberculosis control, which describes the national policies, strategies and the standard case management protocols.

The Federal Directorate and the National TB Center Rawalpindi, in collaboration with the Association for Social Development (NGO), have been working on the following research and development (including training) initiatives:

- (a) Finding better ways and means of offering directly observed treatment
- (b) Insproving access and use of TB care services with a concomitant improvement in the results of TB treatment
- (c) Enhancing role of private practitioners in tuberculosis control
- (d) Developing educational materials for the care providers, the patients and the communities



TUBERCULOSIS CONTROL PROGRAMME IN PAKISTAN

- (c) Assessing the validity and cost of MMR and clinical symptoms as screening tools for tuberculosis
- (f) Imparting training to medical and paramedical staff on standard case management procedures and AFB examination (in selected sites only).

Although the progress made by Federal Directorate has been encouraging but current infrastructure of the Directorate needs definite strengthening for its envisioned leadership role (as discussed above) in controlling tuberculosis in Pakistan. The Directorate's role in ensuring availability of drugs and print materials, and offering nationwide training to health personnel would only be possible when the proposed national plan for tuberculosis control is approved and implemented in Pakistan.

3.2 Provincial Authorities:

The provincial health and tuberculosis authorities are responsible for: a) piloting NTP suggested strategies / procedures in selected districts, b) managing effective implementation of NTP plan, c) offering training, d) ensuring availability of drugs and other materials at district level, e) ensuring quality of services offered in districts, f) coordinating TB control efforts in the province.

The progress on NTP implementation varies in four provinces. The provincial health authorities in NWFP and Sindh seems more active than other two provinces in piloting NTP suggested strategies in selected districts. The difference in circumstances and individual efforts of those involved in tuberculosis control programme seems to be the two major reasons for this inter-provincial variation. However, for effective control of TB in the provinces there is a need for further; a) developing the procedures and tools (i.e. manual and materials etc)., b) straightening the infrastructure, and c) enhancing the capability of staff at provincial level is evident in all four provinces.

3.3 District Authorities:

District is the basic unit of management in Pakistan's national tuberculosis control

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL. 34 NO. 1 2

programme. The Distrifocal point for TB contraresponsible for: a) ensuring management procedures health facilities offering TB care (i.e. diagnosis, treatment, record Leeping & follow. up), b) offer training, c) ensuring availability of drugs at health facilities, d) coordinating TB control activities in the district.

The infrastructure at district level has not vet been adequately strengthened for the envisioned role in NTP. Through initiatives of provincial health authorities NTP pilots have been launched in districts of Peshawar and Charsada (NWFP), Sialkot and Okara (Punjab), Karachi and Larkana (Sindh), and Ouetta (Balochistan). In addition, district health authorities in Islamabad and three districts of Punjab i.e. Rawalpindi, Sahiwal and Gujranwala have taken measures, within available resources, for improving TB care services in their respective districts. Other districts interested in initiating NTP activities sooner (at a scale they can afford without additional resources), can learn from experiences of their colleagues.

3.4 Health Facilities:

Health facilities (i.e. district, tehsil and primary level health facilities) have the most fundamental responsibility of managing tuberculosis patients, according to NTP standard protocols and procedures. The management of patients includes: a) screening, b) diagnosing, c) prescribing and observing (where advised) the treatment, d) educating patient, e) maintaining records, and f) following up patients, including tracing defaulters.

Clear understanding of case management protocols, uninterrupted supply of drugs, reagents and materials, and supervisory support from seniors would be the three prerequisites for health facility staff to follow the NTP suggested procedures. However, ensuring uninterrupted supply of drugs and other materials to health facilities would only be possible with a firm commitment from the decision makers, at allocative as well as managerial levels of hierarchy.

55



M. AMIR KHAN, M. HUSSAIN KHAN, AYUB ALI

3.5 Other Agents:

3.5.1 NGOs

The national policy has highlighted the need for co - ordination with NGOs at federal, provincial and district levels⁷. However, the nature and extent of such co-ordination would be decided by arindividual manager according to their specific situations.

In general, the contribution of NE in tuberculosis control can briefly classified into two areas: a) provision of patient care services, either to supplement or to substitute the public sector care services. TB Association and Red Crescent are examples of such NGOs, b) strengthening the public sector facilities for offering efficient and better quality services e.g. Association for Social Development (ASD) has been working with the Directorate to develop the ways and means of making tuberculosis case The effective. more management Although the Directorate has made some efforts to encourage NGOs' participation in tuberculosis control, however more organized efforts are still needed to develop mechanisms for facilitating the contribution of NGOs in the fight against tuberculosis.

3.5.2 Private Medical Practitioners

The potential role of private medical practitioners has not been explicitly stated in the national strategy for tuberculosis control. However, it is implicit in public **поп**coordinating with sector's government sector, including private medical practitioners, for effective control of tuberculosis in Pakistan. Small scale studies in Pakistan have shown that more than half of tuberculosis patients seek treatment in the private - for - profit sector8, although the quality of care by private medical practitioners is generally poor9. The Federal Directorate, in collaboration with other agencies, is considering doing some pilot work to identify ways and means of enhancing the role of private medical practitioners in tuberculosis control.

3.5.3 Teaching & Research Institutions:

The national tuberculosis control strategy has not specified any role for the medical teaching (graduate and post graduate) and research institutions. However, aim of promoting standard case inanagement practices among care providers can not be fully accomplished unless medical teaching institutes start teaching, practicing and refining the standard protocols. No concrete measures have so far been planned or taken to involve the teaching institutions in promotion of NTP suggested case management protocols among medical doctors.

The role of research institutions (e.g. Pakistan Medical Research Council) in tuberculosis control strengthening very been programme has not so far. However, the encouraging and research with institutions development capabilities are welcomed, by the Directorate, to design & conduct operations research and help finding ways and means of making tuberculosis control more effective and efficient in Pakistan.

3.5.4 Communities

The NTP strategy has identified three main roles for the communities in tuberculosis control¹⁰: (a) encouraging the suspects to visit health facility for assessment, (b) supporting the diagnosed cases to successfully complete treatment, and (c) improving general understanding of disease and its prevention.

The Directorate, in collaboration with ASD, is working in four locations (i.e. on-going DOTs trial in Islamabad, Rawalpindi, Gujranwala and Sahiwal) to identify better ways and means of involving community members (including family members) in making treatment successful. However further efforts is agencies and individuals having reacted experience in the process of community involvement in health care would be welcomed, by the Directorate.

TUBERCULOSIS CONTROL PROGRAMME IN PAKISTAN

4. Concluding Remarks

Tuberculosis is a major public health problem and needs be controlled on a priority basis. The National Tuberculosis Control Programme (NTP) and few other agencies have begun to make some efforts, but contribution of many other potentially useful agencies / sectors is still sub - optimum. Moreover, we lack adequate experience in the proposed DOTs strategy, therefore sharing experiences (within and outside the country) and related development work becomes even more significant for making tuberculosis control effective in Pakistan. Achieving goal of tuberculosis control in Pakistan would only be possible with firm commitment and co-ordinated efforts by all the sectors of society i.e. politicians, planners, founders, managers, care providers and communities.

References

- Jamison D T et al (edit) 1993 Disease control priorities in developing countries Oxford University Press London.
- Kochi A. (1991) The global Tuberculosis situation and the new control strategy of the World Health Organization. *Tubercle*, 72; 1-6.

- WHO (1995) WHO Report on the observation of the observati
- Dollen, Raviglione P.J., Kochi A (1994) Global tuberculosis incidence and mortality during 1990 -2000 Bulletin of the World Health Organization 72: 213 - 220
- MOH (1995) National guidelines for tuberculosis control in Pakistan Directorate of tuberculosis control Pakistan
- MOH (1995) National Guidelines for Tuberculosis Control in Pakistan Directorate of Tuberculosis Control Pakistan
- MOH (1995) National guidelines for tuberculosis control in Pakistan Directorate Tuberculosis Control Pakistan.
- Preliminary findings: Qualitative assessment of registered tuberculosis patients at three locations in Pakistan (conducted in 1995, by Association for Social Development, Dataline & Nuffield Institute for Health)
- Qari M. A. (1996) Situation analysis of pulmonary tuberculosis case management by private medical practitioners of Gawalmandi area, Lahore (IPH Lahore).
- MOH (1995) National Guidelines for Tuberculosis Control in Pakistan Directorate of Tuberculosis Control Pakistan





INCIDENCE OF MALIGNANCY IN PATIENTS UNDERGOING CHOLECYSTECTOMY FOR CALCULUS DISEASE

KHALID JAVED ABID, MUHAMMAD AZHAR MAJEED, FARRUKH MAHMOOD, T. A. SHAH Surgical Unit - II, Jinnah Hospital & Allama Iqbal Medical College, Lahore

Carcinoma of gallbladder is a dreadful disease. Not only because of its very poor prognosis, five year survival rate less than five period, but also due to its progressive silent advancement. In most of the cases it is discontantly when it has already metastasized. This malignancy is closely associated with Cholebal data. The best way of management is its early diagnosis and surgical intervention. The present study was carried out to find out the incidence of malignancy in unsuspected cases. One hundred patients of chronic cholecystitis and ultrasonically proved gallstones admitted in Surgical Univ IV of Services Hospital, Lahore were included in this prospective study. The disease was most common in middle aged females. Male to female ratio was 1:3.5 while the mean age of female patients was 45.1 years and of male patients 55.9 years. Pain right upper quadrant was the most common presentation with a duration varying from 15 days to 8 years. Mean duration of symptoms was significantly longer in case of female patients, 22.3 months as compared to 18.9 months. Right upper quadrant tenderness was the only elicitable clinical sign. Abdominal ultrasonography was the most useful investigation. Cholecystectomy was the treatment offered to these patients and all resected specimens underwent histopathological examination. In 3 cases (3%) malignancy was discovered. The sex ratio being 1:2 Adenocarcinoma was the histopathological type with well differentiated in two (66%) and moderately differentiated in one (33%) of cases. The age of the male patients was 63 years while the mean age of female patients was 52.4 years. The mean duration of symptoms in these cases was thirty seven months. The association of malignancy with gallstones was 100%. Early cholecystectomy is recommended in symptomatic cases.

Introduction

Carcinoma of gallbladder is a great mimicker. Most of the time it presents in the form of benign biliary disease and thus is indistinguishable. The diagnosis is usually very late and so brings a bad omen. The only way to change the course of events is the early diagnosis followed by radical surgery i.e., cholecystectomy / extended cholecystectomy, wedge resection of liver, lymphadenectomy, performed. Surgery is the only choice available as chemo-radiotherapy has almost got nothing to offer in this disease.

The dilemma attached with this disease is that in majority of cases it is diagnosed when the tumour has spread beyond the confines of gallbladder and thus has become incurable and only palliation is possible, if possible at all. The diagnostic tools are of not much help in solving the problem of early diagnosis except abdominal ultrasonography which is the most helpful.

gallstones open symptomatic In. cholecystectomy or laproscopic cholecystectomy should be performed. Although other modalities like ECSWL and bile solvents are available but have got only specific and very limited applications. The management of symptomless gallstones has entirely changed, especially the role of prophylactic cholecystectomy. On one hand incidence of gallbladder malignancy has decreased in USA and Scandinavian countries and resulted prophylactic laproscopic cholecystem as a credited for it1. On the other hand it is a series that the incidence of developing of maligueary from symptomless gallstones is very low and it e



KHALID JAVED ABID, M. AZHAR MAJEED, FARRUKH MAHMOOD, T. A. SHAH

not wise to perform so many unnecessary eholecystectomies². The consensus of current surgical opinion is not to perform surgery in symptomless gall stones. This approach demands a very high accuracy from the sonologist and a very careful attention and responsible attitude from the attending surgeon³. This is the only way to check the transformation of a benign disease into a malignant one or at least finding it when it is operable.

The special aspect of this problem with reference to our setup is that cholelithiasis initiates at comparatively younger age and its most fatal complication, malignancy is also observed earlier. It is therefore recommended that not only we must be more vigilant while dealing our gallstone patients but also all measures should be adopted to provide facilities for early surgery in symptomatic cases.

This study was basically designed to find out:

- The incidence of malignancy in patients suffering from a benign disease.
- The relationship between gallstones and gallbladder malignancy.
- The special characteristics of patients who are at high risk of developing malignancy.
- The most accurate diagnostic technique for carly detection of this lethal disease.

Materials and Methods

One hundered patients of cholelithiasis admitted through out patient department with the provisional diagnosis of chronic cholecystitis in Surgical Unit-IV, Services Hospital, Lahore from February, 1994 to February, 1996 were included in this prospective study.

The diagnosis was based on history, physical examination and ultrasonography. Recurrent attacks of right upper quadrant pain, fever, and upper abdominal disturbances in history and sludge or gallstones on ultrasonography with associated gallbladder wall changes were features pointing towards the diagnosis of chronic cholecysitis. The physical examination in majority of cases was inconclusive.

All those patients were excluded from the study in whom:

-the symptoms were not found related to gall bladder on detailed examination. -repeat ultrasonography denied cholelithiasis
-preoperatively there was a suspicion of malignancy

-the fitness for surgery could no. he ascertained

Complete record of the patients was maintained on a performa which included detailed history, complete physical examination, investigations, operative findings, operative procedures performed, histopathological reports ad follow-up.

In addition to the routine investigations the specific investigations performed were abdominal ultrasonography, oral cholecystography and endoscopic retrograde cholangio pancreticography (ERCP).

All patients underwent cholecystectory performed by senior surgeons i.e., senior registrar or above. Right subcostal, kocher's incision was made in ninety patients. In six patients right was median incision was used and four plants underwent laproscopic cholecystectomy. Changed in cholecystectomy, retrograde, was performed in cighty five cases (85%) while in fatteen cases (15%) fundus first method was applied.

Common bile duct was explored in 6 cases. In all these cases T-tube drainage was performed and on 10th post operative day T-tube cholangiogram was performed before taking the tube out. Suction drain was placed in the sub-hepatic space in all cases.

All the removed gall bladders were preserved in diluted formaldehyde solution and were sent for histopathological examination where they were examined by a competent histopathologist.

Results

Out of one hundred (100) cases in this study there were twenty two (22) males and severcight (78) females, thus producing a male to female ratio of 1:3.5 (Figure No. 1). The age range of patients was from 27 years to 72 years. On the male side it varied from 32 to 72 years with a mean age of 55.9 years. While on the female side it varied from 27 years to 68 years with a mean age of 45.1 years (Figure No. 2 and Table No. 1). Maximum number of male patients presented in the 6th decade, (39.1%) while maximum number of female patients presented in the 5th decade (36.8%). (Figure 3).



26

Table 1 Age distribution of patients.

Age	Males	Females
Mcan (Yrs)	55.9	45.9
Minimum (Yrs)	32	27
Maximum (Yrs)	72	68

Table 2 Percentage of presenting complaints in chronic cholecystitis.

Symptoms	% of Cases	
Pain RUQ	100%	
Vague abdominal pain	68%	
Nausca/vomiting	26%	
Anorexia	19%	
Mass RUQ	5%	

Analysis of the presenting symptoms showed that pain right upper quadrant was the most common complaint i.e., 100% which was followed by vague abdominal pain 68%, less frequent complaints were nausea/vomiting 26%, Anorexia 19% and mass abdomen 5% (Table No. 2).

Duration of symptoms varied from fifteen days to eight years and mean duration of symptoms was 18.7 months in males and 22.3 months in females i.e., comparatively longer duration of symptoms in females. (Table No. 3). Thirty percent of the male patients and sixty five percent of the female patients were overweight.

INCIDENCE OF MALIGNANCY IN PATIENTS

The average parity in case of female patients was five.

The character of the pain described by majority of the patients was intermittent dull ache varying in intensity from moderate to severe, localized at right hypochondrium or radiating to right scapula and associated with gastrointestinal upset. Tenderness of right upper quadrant was the only relevant sign present in 16% of the patients.

Base line investigations were carried out in all patients. Sixteen females (23%) and three males (14%) were found anaemic. Six patients (6%) were found jaundiced and the common finding was raised alkaline phosphatase.

Table 3	Duration	of l	Pain	in.	chronic	chulec	ystitis.
---------	----------	------	------	-----	---------	--------	----------

Duration	Male	Female
Less than 15 days	2	1
Less than 30 days	1	3
Less than 4 months	2	6
Less than 12 months	3	13
Less than 18 months	4	10
Less than 24 months	6	20
Less than 36 months		15
More than 36 months	4	10
Mean Duration	18.7 months	22.3 months



Figure 1 Sex Distribution in Chronic Cholycystitis Cases

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO. 1 - 2



KHALID JAVED ABID, M. AZHAR MAJEED, FARRUKH MAHMOOD, T. A. SHAH



Figure 2 Age Distribution in Ch. Cholycystitis





Figure 3A Age incidence of ch. cholecystitis (Meles)

Abdominal ultrasonography was done in all cases. Gallstones were visualized in 92% of the cases while in 8% patients sludge was observed and in 4% of cases common bile duet was found dilated and containing stone. (Table No. 4)

Oral cholecystography was performed in twenty cases. In nine cases (45%) gallstones were seen as negative shadows. In five cases (25%) gallbladder opacified faintly with poor contraction to fatty meal. In 6 cases (20%) gallbladder could not be visualized. (Table 5).

Table 4	Results of	Abdominal	ultrasonography
	(n = 100).		0.1.7

Findings	No. or PTS.	%
Gallstones	92	02%
Sludge	8	204
Stone in CBD	4	4%
Thick walled/contracted	68	68%
Total	100	

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO. 1 - 2

28



29

Table 5	Results of	Oral o	holecystography	v(n=20).
---------	------------	--------	-----------------	----------

Findings	No. of PTS.	%	
Negative shadow in well opacified G.B.	9	45%	
Faintly opacified G.B.	5	25%	
Non visualization	6	20%	
Total	20	100%	

The hospital stay varied from three days to fifteen days and mean stay was 8.2 days. In majority of the patients (96%) the stay was uneventful.

All the resected specimens were opened peroperatively and the findings were noted. Multiple gallstones were observed in 80% cases while 15% had solitary stones and 5% of cases did not have well formed stones. Peroperatively gallbladder was found adherent to omentum in 60% of cases, to duodenum in 7% of cases and to colon in 3% of cases. The wall of gallbladder was thickened in all the cases and on opening tiny haemorrhagic areas were seen in 57% of cases adjacent to gallstones usually at fundus.







Figure 4 Incidence of CA. G.B. in Ch. Cholycystitis

On histopathological examination ninety two specimens (92%) were of chronic cholecystitis. Five (5%) were of acute on chronic cholecystitis and three (3%) specimens were of carcinoma

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL. 34 NO. 1 - 2

CamScanner

KHALID JAVED ABID, M. AZHAR MAJEED, FARRUKH MAHMOOD, T. A. SHAH

gallbladder (Figure No. 4). Adenocarcinoma was diagnosed in all 3 specimens and it was of well differentiated type in two cases (66%) while it was moderately differentiated in one (33%). In one case it was only involving mucosa while in two cases it had gone deep into muscular layers. Local lymph nodes were not involved and had not been resected.

The histopathological picture in cases of chronic cholecystitis was of marked hyperplasia of gallbladder mucosa with formation of Rockitonsky Aschoff Sinuses and infiltration of entire gallbladder wall with chronic inflammatory cells. The male to female ratio in carcinoma cases was 1:2 and mean duration of symptoms was 37 months. The age of the male patient was 63 years. The ages of the female patients were 49.3 and 55.5 years, the mean age being 52.4 years. Both the female patients were multipara and overweight. In all cases multiple calculi had been found and gallbladder wall was thickened and fibrotic. The incidence of malignancy among the male patients was 4.5% while in case of female patients it was 2.5% clearly showing that male patients with cholelithiasis are much more prone to develop malignancy (Figure No. 5).



igure 5 Incidence of Ca. in Ch. Cholycystitis - Actual and Projected

Discussion

The gallstone disease is remarkably common and is a major and expensive clinical problem. Its prevalence differs in different societies and is greatly influenced by dietary habits. The clinical presentations are multiple and vary from silent gallstones to acute cholecystitis, empyema and perforation. The commonest mode of presentation is chronic cholecystitis with chronic cholelithiasis. The most fearsome aspect of this disease is the conversion of benign pathology into a malignant one which is invariably fatal.

In this study the incidence of occult malignancy, not suspected before but found on histopathological examination, was 3% with male

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL. 34 NO. 1 - 2

to female ratio as 1:2. The age of the male patient was 63 years while the mean age of female patients was 52.4 years.

Two aspects are specially noteworthy, one comparatively greater incidence of occurrent malignancy and second occutt 1 comparatively younger age, Rothenberg et al (1991), had found occult malignancy in 1.5% of elective cholecystectomy cases while Orth et al (1991) in 1.7% and So and Gibney (1990) in 1%143. An autopsy study of 4482 cases conducted by Kimura (1989) produced the figure of 2.1% with male to female ratio 1:26. Regarding the age Cuscheri (1995) describes the average age as 65 years, Erba (1993) 69.2 years and Dachy (1989) 68





years^{7,8,9}. The early age and greater occurrence has been shown by other local observed also.

According to Ishtiaq (1995) the mean age for male patient was 54.3 years and for female 50.57 years¹⁰. According to Riaz and Ali (1957) the mean age for the male patients and the (1957) the Amir-ud-Din (1964) had described and the state of occult malignancy as 5% sectors are the studies conducted by PMRC had produced the figures of the respectively¹².

Greater rate of occurrent

by delay in diagnosis and treateness to the plack of basic health education will the education will be added and the plackery, superstition, parcely diagnosis different and this leads to late presentation. Although the things have much improved but there are occasions when definite treatment, surgery, is either not availed or can not be made available. This leads to a further delay. In this study mean duration of symptoms in males was 18.7 months and in females 22.3 months. This delay is very much detrimental as risk of malignant change goes on increasing with repeated attacks of cholecystitis¹³.

Occurrence at younger age is again related to our social setup where marriages especially of female take place at a very early age and greater number of children is encouraged, average parity in this study was five. During the child bearing age the bile is more lithogenic so in our women the process of stone formation and its related consequences starts at a younger age.

Dietary habits and dietary pattern may also have an influence because in our part of world spicy and fried foods are more routinely consumed then the western world. How strongly these social norms and dietary patterns affect the disease pattern is further strengthened by the study of Tyagi (1992) conducted at Aligarh (India)¹⁴. This study comprised of examining 415 cholecystectomy specimens. Male to female ratio was 1:6.5 and the mean age 43.6 years. Most of the cases (63.4%) were in the 4th and 5th decades of life. The average duration of illness was 32 months. Cholelithiasis was present in 85.3% of cases. Gallbladder carcinoma was found in 6.8% of cases and adenocarcinoma being the commonest 96.4%.

The sex ratio, 1:2 and type of carcinoma, adenocarcinoma, 100% conforms the international pattern, although a comparatively greater study will be necessary to find the exact gender distribution. The symptoms in the malignant cases were entirely indistinguishable from that of benign disease and the same was true regarding signs. Therefore in early stages clinical examination is non suggestive and cannot be relied upon.

In this study all three cases, 100% were basiciated with gallstones which simply proves the point that cholelithiasis initiated the chain of events, comprising of hyperplasia, atypical hyperplasia, metaplasia, dysplasia, anaplasia, carcinoma in ritu and finally culminating in invasive carcinoma. In different studies this association has been reported from 69% to 100%.

Regarding chronic cholceystitis the same trend of occurring at younger age is evident. The mean age in this study of male patients was 55.9 years and of female patients was 45.1 years but on the other side it is also evident that maximum number of male patients presented in the 6th decade 39.1% and maximum number of female patients presented in 5th decade 36.8% and the combined statistics of 5th and 6th decades for males produced the figure of 69.5% and the 4th and 5th decades for females as 67.1%. The symptomatology and their incidence was not much different from that observed by at other centers.

The risk of malignancy increases with obesity, hypercholesterolemia, cholestrol stones, stone size greater than 3 cm or suffering from chronic cholecystitis from quite some time^{3,6,13,15}. All such cases must be dealt with suspicion. Gallbladder should be opened in all cases after its removal and its interior examined. In doubtful cases frozen section biopsy ought to be performed and decision should be taken accordingly.

In this study ultrasonography was performed in all cases and was found to be most helpful in the diagnosis of cholelithiasis. Moreover early changes in gallbladder wall secondary to chronic inflammation induced by gallstones can also be picked up and further investigations to confirm or refute malignancy can be planned or surgery with prior arrangements of frozen section biopsy or imprint cytology can be undertaken.

Oral cholecystography performed in selected cases in this study is much more cumbersome and is not superior in diagnosis than ultrasonography and moreover it exposes the patients to radiation hazard and is not recommended for routine use.

It is therefore recommended that in all cases of biliary diseases, ultrasonography of hepatobiliary area should be the first modulity on KHALID JAVED ABID, M. AZHAR MAJEED, FARRUKH MAHMOOD, T. A. SHAH

diagnostic protocol and sonologist should be specifically asked to see beyond the gallstones especially for signs related to early malignancy.

References

- Rothenberg RE, LaRaja RD, McCoy RE, et al. Elective cholecystectomy and carcinoma of the gallbladder. Am Surg, 1991 May; 57 (5): 306-8.
- Capron JP, Franco D. Management of asymptomatic lithiasis. Rev Prat, 1992 Jun 15; 42 (12): 1474-7.
- Paraskevopoulos JA, Dennison AR, Ross B. Primary carcinoma of the gallbladder: a 10 year experience. Ann R Coll Surg Engl, 1992 May; 74 (3): 222-4.
- Orth K, Haas S, Octtinger W, et al. Risks in elective cholecystectomy. Z Gastroenterol, 1990 Nov; 28 (11): 616-20.
- SO-CB, Gibney RG, Scudamore CH. Carcinoma of the gallbladder: a risk associated with gallbladder preserving treatments for cholelithiasis. Radiology 1990 Jan; 174 (1): 127-30.
- Kimura W, Nagai H, Kuroda A, et al. Clinicopathologic study of asymptomatic gallbladder carcinoma found at autopsy. Cancer, 1989 Jul 1; 64 (1): 98-103.

- Cuscheiri A. The biliary tract In: Cuscheiri A, Giles GR, Moosa AR. Essential surgical practice; 3rd Ed. Butterworth International, 1995: 1020-1025.
- Erba M, Boneschi M, Miani S, et al. Biliary lithiasis and carcinoma of the gallbladder. Minerva Chir, 1993 Oct 15; 48 (19): 1077-82.
- Dachy C, Moreaux J. Cancer of the galibladder. A surgical experience. Presse Med, 1989 Nov 11; 18 (37): 1836-9.
- Ishtiaq Ahmad. Prevalence off carcinoma gallbladder in patients with cholelithiasis. Specialist, Pakistan's J MedSci. Vol-11, No. 3 1995; 213-217.
- Riaz S, Ali A. Carcinoma of gallbladder. Pak J Med Res, 1989; 28: 267-9.
- Amir-ud-Din. Some observations on gallbladd disease in West Pakistan, PJMR, Apr. 1964; 10-112.
- Broden G, Bengtsson L 1980. Carcinoma of the gallbladder, its relation to cholelithiasis and to the concept of prophylactic cholecystectomy. Acta Chirurgica Scandinavica Supplementum. 500, 15-18.
- Tyagi SP, Tyagi N, Maheshwai V et al. Morphological changes in diseased gallbladder: a study of 415 cholecystectomies at Aligarh. J Indian Med Assoc, 1992 Jul; 90 (7): 178-81.
- 15. Diehl AK: JAMA 1983; 250; 2323.




BACTERIOLOGICAL CONTAMINATION OF UNDER GROUND WATER SUPPLY OF SUJAN PUR, MULTAN: A VILLAGE USING SOAKED PIT LATRINES

FARKHANDA KOKAB, AMIR ELAHI JOHRI, FASHED MASOOD, IQBAL AHMAD CH. Institute of Public Mental Labora

Sugar.

Systematically randomized samples of under District Multan were analyzed for presare the test to determine the fecal contamination of under ground water surgest was made to establish its association with the type of latrines (soaked per the anale). 28% of the water samples obtained for the test were found contaminated by the entering organisms.

Introduction

The major danger associated with drinking water is the possibility of its fresh contamination by sewage or by human excreta. If the contamination has recently occurred and the contributors are the cases / carriers of disease like enteric fever, dysentery, cholera, hepatitis etc. The water may contain the living microorganisms of these infections and the drinking of such water may result in the transmission of these diseases. When pathogenic microorganisms are present in feces or sewage, they are almost always greatly out numbered by the normal commensals and these normal intestinal organisms are easier to detect in water. If these organisms are not found in water, it can be inferred that discase producing The absent. also arc microorganisms microorganism that have been most commonly employed as indicator of fecal pollution are E. Coli and coliform group as a whole.

Materials and Methods

Basti Sujan Pur consists of about 200 houses using underground water through handpump / electric motors. 100 houses were selected by systematic random sampling technique for the study. Drinking water samples from the houses obtained through shallow water supply were collected. The water samples were tested by Presumptive Coliform Test -- Multiple Tube Technique at Epidemiology Laboratory of Institute of Public Health, Lahore.

and the state of t

information regarding the water facility and latrings was collected by interviewing the professional diggers in the area and the heads of the house holds.

Results

Number of water samples contaminated by fecal Coliform organisms = 28

Number of water sample uncontaminated = 72 Total number of water samples tested = 100

Table 1

No. of houses
78
22
100

Table 1 shows that out of 100 household selected for the study, 78 use hand pumps, and 22 use electric pumps for obtaining water.

Table 2

Type of latrine	No. of houses
Soaked pit latrines Bore hole latrines	87 7 6
No latine	100
Total	

FARKHANDA KOKAB, AMIR ELAHI JOHRI, RASHID MASOOD, IQBAL AHMAD CH.

Table 2 shows that 87 house holds included in the study has soaked pit latrines, 7 have bore hole latrines, and 6 have no latrines.

Type of platform	Contaminated	Uncontaminated	Tota
Pacca	21 (24%)	67 (76%)	88
Kaccha	07 (70%)	03 (30%)	10
No platform	0	02 (140%)	100
Total	28	72	100

Table 4 shows the relations between the fecal contamination of water a the type of platform around the water source. The values of chi square at 2 degrees of freedom a 10.27 and pvalue is 0.0058

Table 3
Source of Contained Uncontaminated Total

water supply	Contained	Oncontaininated	Total
Hand pump	20 (26%)	58 (74%)	78
Electric pump	8 (36%)	14 (64%)	22
Total	28	72	100
		14.00	-

Table 3 shows the relationship of type of water supply with the fecal contamination of water. Value of chi square is 0.98 and p-value is 0.3225.

Table 5

Water supply Contaminated		Uncotamianted	Total
mater suppry	Contaminated	Oncolaminated	T VILIN
H. P with B. H.	4 (57%)	3 (43%)	7
H. P with pit latrines	15 (25%)	44 (75%)	59
H. P with no latrines	1 (17%)	5 (83%)	6
H. P with no latrines	3 (75%)	1 (25%)	4
H. P with B. H	5 (21%)	19 79%)	0
E. P with pit latrines	0	0	0
Fotal	28	72	100

H. P = Hand pump

B. H = Bore hole latrines

E. P = Electric pump

Table 5 gives the relationship between the type of water supply and type of latrine with fecal contamination of water. Value of chi square at 4 degree of freedom is 8.52 and p- value is 0.0742

Table 6 shows the relationship of between fecal contamination of water and depth of latrine. The value of chi square Test at 2 degrees of freedom is 0.95 and p-value is 0.6220.

Table 7 shows the relationship between feeal contamination of water with the distance between water source and the latrine. Value of chi square at 2 degrees of freedom is 4.52 and p-value is 0.1045

Ta	ы	e	6	
			-	

Depth of latrine in feet	Contaminated	Uncontaminate	ed Total
< 10	24 (29%)	58 (71%)	82
11-20	3 (37%)	5 (70%)	8
21-30	2 (50%)	2 (50%)	4
> 31	0	0	0
Total	29	65	94
the second s			-

34



35

Distance in feet	Contaminated	Uncontaminated	Total
10	21 (33%)	43 (67%)	64
< 10	4 (16%)	21 (84%)	25
11-30 > 31	0	5 (100%)	5
Total	25	69	94

Table 8

Type of l latrine	Contaminated	Uncontaminated	Tota
Soaked pit	22 (25%)	65 (75%)	87
Bore hole	5 (71%)	2 (29%)	7
No latrines	1 (17%)	5 (83%)	6
Total	72	28	100

Table 8 shows the relationship between the type of latrine and bacterial contamination of water. Value of chi square test at 2 degree freedom is of .25 and p-value is 0.0266.

Table 8

Latrine l walls (type)	Contaminated	Uncontaminated	Tota
Brick made	4 (10%)	38 (90%)	22
Mud made	23 (44%)	29 (56%)	1.1.
Total	27	67	94

Table 9 shows the relationship of fecal contamination of water with type of walls of latrines. The value of chi square is 13.67 and p-value is 0.0002179.

Discussion

In the current study it was observed that out of 100 water samples tested, 28 were found contaminated by feeal coliform organisms. The main source of water supply in this area is by hand

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO. 1 - 2

BACTERIOLOGICAL CONTAMINATION OF UNDER GROUND WATER

pumps (79%), whereas 22% of the house hold use electric pumps to obtain water. The prevalent type of latrine in the area is soaked pit (87%), 7% have bore hole latrines and 6% of the house holds included in the study had no latrines.

The study failed to establish any signified relationship between the source of water supply i.e., the feeal contamination of water. The value of chi square is 0.98 and p-value is 0.3225321 (table 3).

The presence of different types of platforms around the water source showed a significant relationship with the fecal contamination of water. Value of chi square is 10.27 and p-value is 0.00587346 (table 4).

No association is found between the depth of latrine and the contamination of water supply. The value of chi square is 0.95 and p-value is 0.62200697 (table 6)

Study could not establish a link between the contamination of water supply and the distance, between the water source and the latrine. The value of chi square is 4.52 and p-value is 0.10454417 (table 7)

An association is observed between the type of latrine and contamination of water source. The value of chi square test is 7.25 and p-value is 0.026917 (table 8).

A strong association is also observed between the water contamination and type of walls of the latrine. Value of chi square is 13.67 and p-value is 0.0002179.

It is concluded from the study that the presence of platform and its type around the water source, the type of latrines and the make of latrines can result in the fecal contamination of underground water. It is however suggested that another study with a bigger sample size be done in future to assess the causal relationship.

- International Standard of Drinking Water, WHO Geneva, 1958
- Wagner E.C. Water Supply of Rural Areas of Small Communities, WHO Geneva 1959
- Cruick Shank R, Medical Microbiology, Edition 1968
- Drinking Water Quality Control in Small Community Supplies, WHO Geneva Vol 3, 1985
- International Standards of Drinking Water, WHO Geneva 1971



CHILD MORTALITY (UNDER - 5 YEAR) SOCIOECONOMIC FACTOR

NAHEED HUMAYUN SHEIKH Department of Community Medicine, Fatima Jinnah Medical College, Lahore

Summary

A retrospective study of mortality of children under five years of age was conducted in a perlurban alums of Lahore, Pakistan for the year of 1991, 2380 nuclear families having children under five years of age during 1991, were selected. 922 children were born alive during 1991. Total population of under fives was 4256, out of which 122, children died during 1991. Overall mortality rate of children under five was 132 per thousand live births. Eighty three (68%) deaths of children under five occurred in families with illiterate mothers, twenty four (20%) deaths in families with under matric mothers, seven (6%) deaths in families with matriculate mothers and eight (6%) in families with pos -matric mothers. Fifty eight (47%) deaths among families with illiterate father, twenty three (19%) deaths among families with under matric, twenty eight (23%) deaths among matric thirteen (11%) deaths in families with father having post matric educational status. 108 (89%) children under five died in families with low income status (0-600) rupies per capits per month), eleven (9%) died among income group (601-1001) rupies per capits per month and 3 (2%) died in income group of rupies 1001 and above per capita per month. This study reaveals that education and income have a strong inspact on mortality under fives.

Introduction

Mortality of children under five years of age has been issue faced by the entire world for decades. "Under five years mortality rate is probability of dying between birth and five years exactly of age expressed per thousand live births"¹. It is one of the principal indicator to measure the levels and the changes in the well-being of children.

Children under five years of age constitute 15% of total population of Pakistan, but they contribute 50% of total deaths². Under five mortality has not yet been brought down appreciably by social and health interventions in the presence of limited resources and high fertility. It becomes more important to analyse etiological correlates of death of children under five for rational health planning and replanning³. Pakistan experiences a high growth rate inspite of spending a lot on family planning programmes, the reasons to which is that we did not improve the chances of survival of children, under five. The surety of survival, in reternances the fertility rate. Survival surety can be given if we have more information about more to trends and mortality patterns among control five years in our country.

According to UNICEF "Pakistan falls under the category of very high under five mortality. During 1994 five mortality rate was 137 per thousand live birth⁴. The last three decades have witnessed a substantial reduction in childhood mortality in most of the decade birding countries⁵. In Pakistan reduction in more of infants and children under five is the record of socio-economic programment to social action activities.

Unfortunately the state in our country is very low. According to 1. MCEF total literacy rate during 1990 was 34%⁷.

Health planners always talk about the rural communities their problems, management and solutions, but they totally forget the urban slums which will be the biggest problem in the near future. People living in such areas constitute 60% of all the urban population in Pakistan and the number is on the rise. "People living in these slums are the legal settlers but they are living in insanitary housing and environment⁸. Total children living in the urban area of Pakistan are 16.7 million out of which 7.5 million live in periurban settlements and kachi abadies. The proportion of population living in such conditions was estimated by Government of Pakistan as:

"In Karachi 50%, in Lahore 40% and in Faisalabad it is 60%"?.

therefore a lot of work is to be done in this respect. More specific community based studies should be conducted in Pakistan after taking into consideration the socio-economic status, environmental conditions specially the level of education and health education of population, so that the mortality could be brought down to a level at par with the developed countries.

Materials and Methods

The study was conducted in a peri-urban slums of Lahore, Pakistan. 2380 nuclear families having children under five years of age were selected out of 4428 families residing in the study area from a well maintained record of a NGO.

Door to door survey was conducted during the period from 1st January to 30th April 1992. The proformas were filled in by the researcher herself to get the related informations about deaths of under five during the year 1991 and the socioeconomic correlates.

 All those families were included in the study, having one or more children under five years of aged during the year 1991.

2. Children mortality under five years of age is defined as number of children dying before the age of five years for every thousand live births during one calendar year.

3. Other variables

- Education of mother and father.
 Four levels of education were made.
 - (a) Illiterate: ranked (O) who can not read and write in Urdu.

(b) Under matric : ranked (1) level ranges from literate to 8th grade. (c) Matric: ranked (2) matric passed as well as failed.

(d) Post-matric : ranked (3) who had education after matric (passed or failed.)

(ii) Income: Total income of the family per month was equally divided into all the family members and income per capita per month was considered and stratas were made as follows.

(a) 0-600 rupees per capita per month

(b) 601 - 1000 rupces per capita per month.

(c) Rupces 1001 and above per capita per month.

Statistical Analysis was done by calculating the percentage of deaths of children under five, experienced by different stratas of income and education.

Results

Basic informations collected from well maintained record of a NGO and vital data was collected through house to house survey from January to April 1992 based on recalled history of 1991 as shown in Table I.

 Table 1
 Related Information about Population in the Area for the year 1991

-		
	Total Population during 1991	27095
1.	Total Families	4428
2.		6
3.	Family size	4256
4.	Population of under five during 1991	2380
5.	Families having children under five	- GRAV
6.	No. of children alive (1 - 5) during 1991	41.34
-	Live births during 1991	922
7.	No. of deaths (0 5) during 1991	122
8.	No. of deaths (0 5) during the	ath 110
9.	No. of families experience under five de	2000
10.	No. of families did not	2270
	experience under five deaths	0.000
11.	Manufacture Role of under five	132 per
11.	1000	live births
-	Infant Morality (0 1 year)	92 per
12.	Infant Morany (o Tyeary	live births
		CONTRACTOR OF A



NAHEED HUMAYUN SHEIKH

Educational Status	Number of Mothers	Number of live Births 1991	Number of Deaths under 5	Mortality upper 5 per 1000 live Births
Illiterate	1328	460	83 (68.03)	180
Under Matric Matric	600	241	24 (19.67)	100
	297	132	7 (5.74)	53
Post Matric	155	89	8 (6.56)	90
Total	2380	922	122 (100)	
alues in parenthesis are p	and an and a second sec	100	122 (100)	and the second sec

Table 2 Mortality of Children under five years of age as related to educational status of mothers



Figure 1 Pie-Chart showing percentage distribution of deaths of under five as related to educational status of mothers



Figure 2 Pie-Chart Showing Percentage Distribution of Deaths of Under Five as Related to Educational Status of Fathers.

Illiterate mothers experience a mortality rate of 180 per thousand live births and abrupt fall is seen at matric level. The death rate is 90 per thousand live birth amongst post matric mothers which is bit higher than matriculate mothers due to accidental deaths of children in post-matric category, but if we analyse just two stratas of education i.e. above matric and below matric the result in 153 per thousand live births in below matric and is 68 per thousand live births in above matric level.





Combined Effect of Parents Education:

Level of literacy of Fathers and Mothers.

- 0 Illiterate
- Under Matric 1
- Matric 2
- 3 Post-Matric



JNUI	Number of Fathers	Number of live Births	Number of Deaths under 5	Mortality under 5 per 1000 live Births
	784	378	58 (57.54)	
atric	573	178	23 (18.84)	153
atric	599	216	28 (22.95)	129
24	424	150	13 (10.66)	130
inic		Contraction of the second	10 (10.00)	87
	2380	922	122 (100)	

Table 3 Mortality of Children Under five as Related to Educational Status of Fathers

Values in parenthesis are percentages

Tuble 4 Impact of Income per Capita per Month (in rupces) of Family as Related to Mortality Under Five Years of Age.

Income Status per Capita per Month in rupees	Number of Families	Sumber of live Dicths	Number of Deaths under 5	Mortality under 5 per 1000 live Births	
0-600	2075	779	108 (88.52	139	-
601-1000	232	102	11 (9.02)	108	
1001 and above	73	41	3 (2.46)	73	re
Total	2380	922	122 (100)		

Values in parenthesis are percentages.

Table 5 Combined Effect of Parents Education on Mortality Under Five.

	-	Mot	ther		
	0	1	2	3	Total
0	47	4	1	0	52
1	13	7	1	0	21
2	15	9	2	1	27
3	3	2	2	3	10
Total	78	22	6	4	110

The horizontal numbers denotes father's education and vertical numbers mother's

Discussion

2380 families with children under five year of age were residing in the study area. Out of which 110 families experienced 122 deaths of children under five during 1991. The present study reveals that during 1991, 922 children were born and 122 under five children died. The mortality rate of children under five years of age was 132 per thousand live births.

Families having illiterate fathers experienced more death of children under five (58 death 47.54%) and the mortality rate of under five among such families was 153 per thousand live births. The mortality rate was falling with increasing educational status. Abrupt fall was observe beyond matric level (87 per thousand live births).

Educational status of mothers was noted to have more profound effect on under five mortality and was inversely related to under five deaths. Among illiterate mothers the mortality rate was 181 per thousand live births where as among postmatric mothers the mortality rate came down to 90 per thousand live births.

The present study revealed that impact of educational status of parents is quite strong while the difference in death rates among different



NAHEED HUMAYUN SHEIKH

income stratas is by chance and statistically is not significant at all.

Conclusion

Present study conclude that the contributory factor for death of under five is education of parents which is an avoidable factor. Education of parent either directly or indirectly through improved utilisation of health service has better effect on reducing the mortality of children under five years of age.

Recommendation

High mortality of under five in a peri-urban slums of Lahore reflects the poor health administration and lack of inter-sectorial coordination. The following stategic recommendation can lower the child mortality. (a) At National Level: The time has come that our health planners should think about intersectoral co-ordination, especially with the Education Department. The increase in literacy

: decrease the level of under five mortality at par with developed countries.

(b) Mass Media can play a vital role in educating and motivating the people about the health problems of the vulnerable group (children under five) and the measure which can reduce the under five death. The media can also play important role coaching the population about health in knowledge and information.

(c) Social Action Programme 93-98 should be implemented in true sense. The SAP emphasises that primary education is the nucleus from which all secctors gain.

(d) Equal Distribution of resources for all the citizen of Pakistan is their fundamental right. Unfortunately the slums and kachi abadies have none of the privileges and advantage of urban and rural settling, but face all the many disadvantages of the urban and rural living.

(c) More Community based studies should be (c) More conducted to find out the exact coological correlates which can easily be avoided. (f) Community Level Intervention

1. Social welfare organisation should motivate, assist and advise, the communities about establishment of health care facilities and educational institution on selfhelp basis.

2. Imams should be encouraged and coached in order to involve them in giving the population primary education and basic health knowledge along with teaching of Quran and Smah,

- 1 UNICEF. The State of World's I dayn 1996 UNICEF annual report Oxford Un ruly Press 1996; 102.
- 2. Mubarik MM. Common Sickness and their contribution to Mortality: In: Health Converge in Palastan, An Evaluation for future Strategy Health for all, 1st, ed, 1990; 39.
- 3. Awan AH, Awan AK, Qadri MA Socio-economic Conditions as Related to Infant Montaline J. Maternal-Child-W-Assoc-Pakistan 1986; 11.
- 4. UNICEF. The State of World's Children 1996 UNICEF annual report Oxford University Press 1996; 80.
- 5. John C, Bicego G, Fegan G. Socio-economic Ingegalities in Childhood Mortality: The 1970's competed with 1980;s Demographic and Health Surveys World Conf. Washington D.C. 1991, 135-49.
- 6. Rukanuddin AR, Faroogi MNI. Mortality. In Th State of population in Pakistan 1988, 71.
- UNICEF. The State of World's Children 196 7. UNICEF annual report Oxford University Press. 1996; 80.
- 8. UNICEF. Health: Situation Analysis of Children and Women in Pakistan (1988-1992) 1988; 42.
- 9. Government of Pakistan, Planning Commission. Pakistan National programmes of Action for the Goals for children and Development in the 1990 1990; 3-5



DRUG NON - COMPLIANCE IN TUBERCULOUS PATIENTS: CAUSES AND RECOMMENDATIONS

ALI I. RAJA, A. S. CHAUGHTAI, NASIR SADDIQUE King Edward Medical College, Lahore

Non - compliance is the most important cause of failure of anti - tuberculous treatment throughout the world especially developing countries. We studied two hundred and six patients at the out patients department of Tuberculosis and Chest Diseases at Mayo Hospital, Labore. An overall compliance of 65.5% (135 / 206) was observed. Seventy one patients (345%) were found to be non - compliant. In the non - complaint group, the main cause was tack of finances in 47.9% (34 / 71) and self discontinuation of treatment in 21% (15 / 71) as the symptoms of disease were allestated. Seven patients (9.9%) were care free and took medications on discretion. Side effects of the drugs accounted for only 2.8% of the dropouts. Other demographic variables including set, age, marital status, education and living in rural or urban areas were not found to be uncertaited with non compliance.

Introduction

One of the killers that the developed countries thought they had eliminated, has shown a recent ome back. The killer is tuberculous disease. The research done on the microbial resistance and search for new drugs for tuberculosis has been minimal as compared to research in other areas that pose a greater threat to population in those countries, e.g., heart disease, malignancies and groke. The developing countries, as in all other fields, are lagging behind, though for them, research in this area of medicine can prove extremely beneficial.

As we don't have effective new drug regimens coming in for the treatment of tuberculosis, prevention of development of drug resistance to existing drugs becomes critical. Non - compliance is the major cause of treatment failure and drug resistance and may be defined as failure to adhere to a prescribed treatment plan.

The aim of this study was to find out the various reasons for non compliance. We feel that understanding these factors may help us eliminate or control them

Patients and Methods

The study is based on 206 patients, of either sex, who were already on anti tuberculous treatment (ATT) and were attending the out patients department of Tuberculosis and Chest Discuses at Mayo Hospital, Lahore, between June 96 and August 96 and were selected for this study. The hospitalised patients on ATT and those who were taking ATT as a prophylaxis, were not included in this study. All age groups were included. The patients were seen by the doctor on duty and were then sent to us. A performa relating to the signs, symptoms & diagnosis of the disease, the type of medication, socio-economic factors and causes of non compliance, was filled. The criteria for diagnosis were clinical, radiological and laboratory investigations. There were 116 males and 90 females, whose ages ranged from 2 to 80 years. Most of the patients were initially started on a four drug regimen for 3 months, followed by 3 drugs for the next 6 months. Those patients who did not tolerate any of the four drugs, received 3 drugs, changing to 2 drugs after 3 months. The type of tuberculosis, the duration of treatment and the drugs used by the non - complaint group, and shown in tables 1, 2 and 3.



	Joints	71
Lymph Nodes 5 Pulmonary & Lymph Nodes 2	Spine	and the second
Lymph Nodes	Pulmonary & Lymph Nodes	
	Pulmonary Lymph Nodes	5



ALI I. RAJA & S. CHAUGHTAI, NASIR SADDIQUE

Table 2. Duration of Treatment (Non - compliant)

Duration	Number
Up to 3 months 4 to 6 months	20 (28%)
7 to 9 months	15 (21%)
More than 9 months	8 (11%)
Total	28 (39%)
TOTAL	71

Table 3. Drugs advised (Non - compliant)

Total	71
and the state of t	4
Streptomycin	2
Rimaciazid / Rifinah	4
Rambuzid	12
Myrin - P	3
Myrin	45
- Jimennamilde	41
Contambulor / Myambutat / Astron	54
Rifampicin / Rifapin / Rimactane	45
INH	

Results

Of the 206 patients, 135 (65.5%) were found to be compliant to the medication and 71 (34.5%) were non-compliant. The reasons for non, compliance were:

- (a) The most common factor was the cost of medication (47.9%) i.e. 34 periods.
- (b) 21% (15) patients discontinued the medication, once the symptoms of the disease were alleviated.
- (c) 9.9% or Seven patients took medication on 'discretion'.
- (d) 7% or five patients discontinued ATT as they did not find it effective.
- (c) Only 2.8% dropped out due to side effects of the drugs.
- (f) 2.8% or two were not willing to take the medication.
- (g) Psycho social factors were involved a group comprising of 6 patients (8.5%). (Table no. 4).

Table 4. Causes of Non - compliance

Causes of Non - compliance	No of Patients	% age (n = 71)
 A. Lack of Finances B. Self Discontinuation on Alleviation of Symptoms C. Careless Behaviour of patient D. Drugs found Ineffective E. Drugs stopped due to Side Effects F. Didn't want to take drugs G. Psycho - social factors 	34 15 7 5 2 2	47.9 21.1 9.86 7 2.8 2.8 2.8
Didn't know he was to take PZA, others regularly Her elder son had his hand in press She didh't take drugs after her son died He did not know how to take medicine Taking PZA even after doctor discontinued Says she fought with the shopkeeper	6 1 1 1 1 1	8.5

Patients between 10-40 years and those above 50 years appeared to comply better than other. (Table no. 5 and Figure no. 1).

Other demographic variable including sex, marital status, education and living in urban and rural areas, were not associated with increased risk

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 ND 1-2



42

el non compliance and had no statistically el non statistically significant outcome. Low income had a statistically

DRUG NON - COMPLIANCE IN TUBERCULOUS significant association with a high risk of

use Group	No. of Patients (n = 206)	Non of Non - compliant patients (n = 71)	Percentage of non - compliant patients in the same age group
	12	5	
1-10	73	21	41.6
11-20	44	17	28.7
21-30	27	9	38.6
31-40	18	12	33.3
41 - 50			66.6
51 - 60	20	3	15
& Above	12	4	33.3



Fig 1. Non - compliance according to age

Discussion

The incidence of tuberculosis is increasing and multiple drug resistance has appeared. The greatest increase in the infection has been in the developing countries, but with an increased ucidence of HIV infection, tuberculosis has tesurfaced as a "Global Emergency" in the developed countries as well1. Resistance to antitubercalous drugs is caused by inadequate regimens or of patient non compliance. For a successful control programme for tuberculosis, steps should be taken to present the spread of the disease, it's early diagnosis, prophylaxis and the effected patients should be treated by regimens as recommended by WHO2.

Non-compliance is the major cause of treatment failure and drug resistance245.67 and may be defined as failure to adhere to a prescribed treatment plan". In the best centres of the world, it is unusual for a tuberculosis clinic to have default



ALLI. RAJA A S CHAUGHTAI, NASIR SADDIQUE

rates of less than 15%⁹. In our study an overall compliance of 65.5% was observed which is much better than the previously reported studies from Lahore (49.53%) and Faisalabad (34.88%)^{10,11}.

Our study has clearly shown that main cause of non-compliance is the cost of treatment (47.9%). This factor not only explains the inferior result of our study compared with those of developed countries where not only medicines are provided free and patients, especially defaulters, are followed up at their residences but also raises the issue that policy makers and health personnel should set up emergency programmes to ensure the uninterrupted supply of medicines to the tuberculous patients in our country.

The second common cause of no - compliance was the self discontinuation of the drugs by patients as the symptoms of disease are alleviated and patients consider themselves cured. This may represent the poor communication between the doctor and patient. Explanation and education of the patients regarding the nature of disease and significance of taking medicines for the specified period, in appropriate regimen, is very important to improve the compliance and hence overcome drug resistance.

The third major category (7 / 71, 9.8%) in the non - compliant patients was of those patients who were careless and took medication on 'discretion'. This may be due to psychological factors such as the patient's levels of anxiety motivation to recover, attitudes towards their coress, the drugs and the doctor, as well as the attributes and beliefs of significance other in their environment¹².

Duration of treatment also influences the patients compliance, as is shown in our study. Non - compliance was observed in 9.7% at the end of three months compared with 21% at the end of 9 months. Others have also observed the chronicity of illness as one factor for non compliance 0.14

Compliance was not influenced by other demographic variables, including sex, age, marital status, occupation and living in urban or rural area. (Table no. 6)

Demographic Variable	No. of Patients $(n = 206)$	No. of Non - compliant Patients (n = 71)	% of non - compliant Patients in the same group
Sex	and anything the		and the same group
Male	116		
Female	90	41	35
	20	31	34
Marital Status			
Married	102	39	
Unmarried	103	31	38.24
Divorced	1		30_33
Widowed			100 (small sample)
CHORE CONTRACTOR			
ducation			
Uneducated	68	30	
Up to Matric	125	37	44.12
Above Matric	13	4	29.6
esidence		NAME AND ADDRESS ADDRE	30.77
Rural	168	59	35.11
Urban	38	12	
come		and for any other	31.58
Below Rs. 1500 / m			
Rs. 1500 - 3000 / m	78	44	56.41
Abour De 2000 / m	96	23	23.96
Above Rs. 3000 / m	32	4	12.5

Table 6. Non - compliance according to Demographic Variable

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL 34 NO. 1-2





Although we found poor compliance (38%) in Although below the age of 10, compared paediatric grand elderly. This difference could be with adults and the basis of small rise with addies on the basis of small size in the pacdiatric group and secondly, these children paediatric on their parents and guardian for dependent and therefore non - compliance cannot be attributed to the paediatric group directly and is multi - factorial.

Conclusions

A compliance of 65.5% achieved in this study in not satisfactory. This indicates poor services provided at our hospitals including poor doctor patient relationship, lack of patients education regarding the illness, lack of ration for the use of medication for its treatment concerning possible side effects. In hubility of free medicines at the hospital is also important

Lastly, lack of social services directly factor. therapy (DOT) pressumme to administer the anti tuberculous treatment, which have greatly improved the compliance in the developed countries14,15, is also responsible.

Compliance can be improved by following measures:

- 1. Recognition of non compliance and drug resistance as the major problems in the failure of Tuberculosis control programme by the health concerned policy makers and professionals.
- 2. Attempts to improve the sympathetic attitude of medical staff (doctors and paramedics) control tuberculosis the in involved programme.
- 3. Involvement of Volunteers, Students and Nursing staff, for explaining and motivation of patients regarding their treatment.
- 4. Patient involvement in the plan of care.
- 5. Family counselling and education, to increase perseverance.
- 6. Use of intensive short course chemotherapy, with low toxicity and reduced cost.
- 7. Arrangement to be made to administer the directly observed therapy (DOT), in order to improve compliance.

DRUG NON - COMPLIANCE IN TUBERCULOUS

- 8. Fair and equal treatment of all patients. 9. Supply of free medicines to non affording

- Mauch H. Persistence of mycobacteria in the host: 1. epidemiology, immunopathology and prophylaxis, Zentralbl - Hyg Umweltmed, 1993 Feb; 194(1 2): 2.
- WHO Treatment of Tuberculosis: Recommended Regimens. Geneva 1993: 5 15. 3.
- Rideout M, Menzies R. Factors compliance with preventive treatment for offecting tuberculosis at Mistassini lake, Quebec, Canada. Clin invest Med 1994. Feb; 17(1): 31 - 6.
- 4. Kilpatric GS. Compliance in relation to tuberculosis. Supplement to tubercle 1987, 68: 31 -32.
- 5. Kilpatrie GS Defaulters and motivation. Tubercle 1972; 53, 147.
- 6. Chault P. Compliance with anti tuberculosis chemotherapy in developing countries. Supplement to tubercle 1987; 68: 19 24.
- 7. Aziz A; Siddiqi SH; Aziz K; et al. Drug resistance of mycobacterium tuberculosis isolated from treated patient in Pakistan. Tubercle, 1989; 70:45 51.
- 8. Bebbington PE, The content and context of compliance. Int Clin Psychopharmacol. 1995 Jan; 9 Suppl 5: 41 50.
- 9. Daniel TM. Tuberculosis, in Wilson JD, Braunwald E., Isselbacher KJ., Petersodorf RG., Martin JB., Fauci AS., Root RK eds. Harrison's Principles of Internal Medicine. 12th ed. McGraw Hill 1991:637 945.
- 10. Rasul S; Haq Nawaz M, Khan S; et al, Compliance in tuberculous patients at services hospital, Lahore, JCPSP 1994; 4 (3): 88 91.
- Parvez A Chaudhry NA; 11. Abdullah SA; Compliance in tubercular patients at Faisalabad,
- Pakistan Journal of Medical Research, 1989 28(2):
- 12. Evans L; Spelman M. The problem of noncompliance with drug therapy. Drugs. 1983 Jan;
- 13. German PS. Compliance and chronic disease.
- Hypertension, 1962 (14) (3 Pt 2): 1156 60. 14. Chaulk CP; Manuel K; Rizzo R et al Eleven years of error a cased directly observed
- therapy for tute MIA 1995 Sep. 27, 274 Cohen D; ct al. (12): 945 51
- Comprehensive and the control for patients at 15. Schluger N; high risk for nun and and Am J Respir Crit-Care Med 1995 May, 31 (5): 1486 90.



DO DEVELOPING COUNTRIES NEED "HEPATITIS A" VACCINE?

ABDUL JAMIL CHOUDHRY

Department of Epidemiology, Institute of Public Health, Lahore

Summary

Hepatitis A is a facco-oral transmitted disease, with variable age of incidence A the world. The morbidity and mortality associated with the disease is low, which inc. with increasing age. While recommending the use of the newly developed vaccine we 10 10 consider the cost, long term efficacy, safety, adjustability with existing EP1 promitime, production capacity, suboptimal performance of vaccine in developing countries, and on disease epidemiology and alternative methods of Hepatitis A control. While considering all this Hepatitis a vaccine may be a reasonable choice in developed world, but is not a good choice for control of Hepatitis A in majority of the developing countries.

KEY WORDS : Hepatitis A, Hepatitis A Vaccine, Developing Countries.

Introduction

Hepatitis A is a viral disease with global distribution and until recently control of disease meant management of symptomatic cases, use of normal immunoglobulins for personal prophylaxis and improvement of hygiene, food and water supply for population control. But the marketing of two new, apparently safe and effective, inactivated Hepatitis A vaccines have created a new scenario¹. A new question has arisen: do developing countries, having the main load of disease, need Hepatitis A vaccine for control of disease in their population?

While many of the factors that determine the suitability of a vaccine for public sector use are common to both industrialized and developing countries there are unique consideration for the latter due to different host and environmental factors affecting disease distribution and dynamics, prevalent socio-economic system, existing health care system and scarce resources.

First some epidemiological facts about the disease, which may help us in making decisions. Hepatitis A is a self limiting viral disease caused by Hepatitis A virus of picornavirus family with single identifiable scrotype. It is transmitted mainly through facco-oral route with man as the only epidemiologically important host. The clinical presentation of Hepatitis A infection is largely

modified by the age of the infected person. Below 2 years of age 84% of children get asymptomatic infection, while 50% of children of 3 and 4 years of age and only 20% of children above 5 years of age get asymptomatic infection². Even in symptomatic cases disease is mild in children as compared to adults in whom 70-80% develop icteric hepatitis. Complication are rare with a mortality rate of 0.01-0.1% in adults due to fulminant hepatitis. No chronic stage of the disease exists and the symptomatic acute hepatitis alone is respfor the morbidity and economic loss associated with the disease3.

Infection and in turn anti HAV antibodies are noted to be universally related to the standards of sanitation and hygicne. Although a discase of global distribution, but based on varying levels of standards of sanitation and hygicne Hepatitis A exhibit three different patterns of high, intermediate and low endemicity4.

In areas of high endemicity, with poor sanitation and hygicae, which constitute the majority of developing countries in Africa, Asia, South and Central America, the reported ratiof discase is relatively low and outbreaks are uncommon as most persons are infected with rus before 5 years of age, mainly the gh asymptomatic or at least anicteric infection In Eastern Europe, republics of former USSR, and and some countries like Mauritius and Th and



which are in a transition stage with improving which and hygicne conditions peak rate of sanitary is in older childhood and sale sanitary is in older childhood and adolescence, infection higher reported rate and out infection is higher reported rate and outbreaks of with a whereas in developed countries with a Whereas in developed countries owing to disease intation and water supply, infection is good same support to adulthood and mainly restricted usually risk groups with higher proportion of symptomatic cases and mortality,

This indicates that as countries improve conomically over time, and consequently levels of sanitation and the quality of the water supply improve and household overcrowding decreases, the average age of infection shifts to older age groups where clinical disease is more frequent. So as infection in the community decrease, ironically morbidity due to Hepatitis A may i ase.

A is the sixth most commonly me discase it is virtually non-existent as a second contity in disease burden data from devele countries, with high endemicity patterns45. The may partially be due to inefficient health information systems but is mainly due to the huge discuse burden of discases like tuberculosis, malaria, diarrheal discases, HIV infection, respiratory tract infections and measles, which are rightly much higher on priorities of health information system of these countries5.

If the vaccine is to be used at all, we have to look into the vaccine more thoroughly. Although the safety, efficacy and thermostability of inactivated vaccine has been demonstrated in different trials5,6, still a number of unanswered question remain which need to be answered dearly before it can be recommended for public sector use in a developing country. As establishing a separate programme will be very costly, we have to consider that whether this vaccine can be incorporated into the existing EPI programme being run in the developing countries, without much modification of existing administrative, logistic and technical set-up.

So what is the long term efficacy of the vaccine? Can this vaccine be used in new-borns, both regarding immunogenicity and safety? Can dosage schedule be adjusted to EPI? Can it be mixed with other vaccine? Live attenuated (when available) or inactivated vaccine to be used? Should it be used in children or adults? At present cost of the vaccine is very high, which may come

DO DEVELOPINO COUNTRIES NEED HEPATITIS A VACCINE;

down if used extensively or due to competition but how long will it take to become affordable? Can affordable global supply be guaranteed? Further it has been seen that there has been suboptimal performance of vaccines in developing countries related to local administrative, managerial and logistic capabilities, malnutrition, poverty, population growth, accessibility of health care, religious and gender bias, war, refugee camps and political uprising7. Introducing a vaccine, for which many important pieces of information are still lacking, in such an environment may not be a good

Then we have to look into alternative methods of Hepatitis A control. As it is known that without the use of any vaccine, the Hepatitis A infection and morbidity has decreased in developed countries in the past and in many developing countries in recent years associated with improvement in sanitation, safe water supply and better hygienic practices4. For making the choice of immunization as a primary control strategy for controlling target disease, cost-effectiveness studies comparing immunization and alternative options are required. However, it is difficult to estimate the output of Hepatitis A control programmes as little is known about the calculation of benefits or cost prevented for this disease, so it will be very difficult to conduct comparative cost-benefit or cost-effectiveness studies.

At present the cost of EPI immunization average about US\$ 15 per immunized child, adding Hepatitis A vaccine with single dose costing about US\$ 35 would be a Herculean task keeping in view the total health expense of less than US\$ 15 per capita per year for majority of the population in developing countries and decreasing donor support essential for continuation of existing immunization programme in these countries7,8.

In this connection, it may not be out of place to mention that vaccine for Hepatitis B, a much higher priority discusse burden in developing countries, was incompensated into EPI programme when cost of vaccorreduced to US\$ 1 per dose9. Even if 11 vaccine is combined with Hepatitis E being recommended, to control viral h. developing countries we have to take interesting station the fact that in Africa and Asia n mon-B Hepatitis may possibly account for 50% of cases of viral hepatitis



ABDUL JAMIL CHOUDHRY

attributable probably to HEV, which cannot be benefited from either of the vaccine². While the cost of safe water and sanitation services in these areas can be as little as US\$ 15 per person per year, which will not only help in controlling Hepatitis A but also help in controlling a number of water borne diseases⁵.

Further, a major effect of immunization on the dynamics of target infection in the population is the rise in average age of infection. In a diseases like Hepatitis A this may tantamount to increasing morbidity, mortality and economic burden on the community.

However, while discussing a big and heterogeneous group like developing countries there is always a risk of overstating generalities and underestimating differences in the diverse group, so as it own decision regarding its need assessment based on its peculiar epidemiological situation and country's health priorities.

The use of vaccine in high risk groups although does not affect the overall pattern of disease in a population but nevertheless it may reduce a reasonable burden from the health care system and in developing countries such groups may be travelers from nonendemic areas, health care personnel, sewage worker and residents of institutes of mentally disabled¹.

Together with the explosion in science and technology there has been widening of the gap between what is achievable by current knowledge and what is achieved. As Mooney and Creese commented "the need to set priorities arises from the fact that not all illness can be eradicated not all needs met. This failure to be able to meet all needs arise not principally because of limitations of technology, but because of scarcity of resources. Policy makers in the health sector have to manage resources in ways that maximize health outcomes, whether this means redeploying resources, allocating limited new resources or cutting back on the use of existing resources"¹⁰. If a particular programme costs are greater than benefits, then the programme should not be implemented. If the money could have been better spent elsewhere, money should have been spent elsewhere and then they should have been spent elsewhere and Hepatitis A vaccine, although possibly a good Hepatitis A vaccine, is probably not that choice in distant future, is probably not that "elsewhere" in the present state of affairs for the majority of developing countries.

- Lemon SM. Inactivated He atitis A vaccines, JAMA. 1994; 271: 1363-64
- Kurstak E. Viral Hepatitis: Current status and issues. New York: Springer-Verlag. 1' 15-26, 181.
- Jilg W. Adult use of Hep is A vaccine in developed countries. Vaccine. 1 03; 11 Suppl 1: S6-S8.
- Shapiro CN, Margolis HS. Worldwide epidemiology of Hepatitis A virus infection. J Ilepatol. 1993; 18 Suppl 2: S11-S14.
- World Bank. World Development Report 1993; 93, 238, 258.
- Wiedermann G, Ambrosch F. Immunogenicity of an inactivated Hepatitis A vaccine after exposure at 37 degrees C for 1 week. *Vaccine*. 1994; 12: 401-2.
- Arya SC. Human immunization in developing countries: practical and theoretical problems and prospects. *Vaccine*. 1994; 12: 1423-1434.
- Anonymous. Epidemiology of hepatitis A: Discussion. Vaccine. 1992; 10 Suppl 1: S97-S98.
- Aylward B, Kane M, Batson A, Mc Nair Scott R. A framework for the evaluation of vaccines for use in the expanded programme on immunization. Vaccine. 1994; 12: 1155-1159.
- Mooney G, Creese A. Priority setting for Health Service Efficiency: The Role of Measurement of Burden of Illness. In Jamison DT et el. (eds.) Disease Control Priorities in Developing Countries. Washington, Oxford University press. 1 93: 731-740.





SYSTEMIC LUPUS ERYTHEMATOSUS IN PREGNANCY

MUHAMMAD ARSHAD CHOHAN, SAIMA SAMI K. E. Medical College / Lady Willingdon Hospital, Lahore

A case of a young primigravida suffering from systemic lupus crythematosus is presented. Her blood pressure remained normal throughout pregnancy, and she had no renal involvement of the disease except from having recurrent uninary tract infections, which were successful treated with antibiotics. Photosensitivity, butterfly case of pyrexia remained her main problems during pregnancy and intrauterine growth sufface of was suspected at 32 weeks of gestation for which she had an elective caesarean water of the weeks. The baby developed prolonged jaundice and thrombocytopenia as the frames are successful lupus syndrome, which were successfully treated.

Introduction

Systemic Lupus Erythematosus (SLE) is a multi-system disease and generally presents in the younger age group. That is why it is uncommon to see this disease in pregnant women¹. Its incidence is 1 in 700 white women and 1 in 245 in black women. The importance of this disease in pregnancy is that the exacerbation rate is 3 times greater in the first half of pregnancy, one and a half times greater in the second half of pregnancy and at least 6 times greater in the puerperium. puerperium is the time when the majority of maternal deaths occur. It is therefore recommended that the best time for conception in women with SLE is at the time of remission or controlled stage, i.e., patients treated with prednisone in a dose of 5-50 mgs/day for more than six months or without any medication for at least one year2. The general consensus is that the pregnancy does not affect the long term prognosis of SLE. SLE affects the pregnancy by increasing the incidence of late abortions, pre-term labour, intrauterine growth retardation (IUGR), intra uterine death (IUD), complete heart block and structural cardiac abnormalities. To avoid these complications a close monitoring of the patient's condition in collaboration with the physicians is required.

Case Report

Presentation:

A 22 years old primigravida married for 1 year presented to the ante-natal clinic for booking at 14 weeks gestation. She was a known case of SLE which was diagnosed 4 years ago, and since then she was regularly taking steroids and the disease was well-controlled. In her family history her mother was hypertensive and diabetic.

On booking visit she complained of continuous low grade fever for the last 4 weeks for which she took treatment from different doctors but did not gain complete recovery. She was looking unwell with a butterfly rash on her face. She weighed 55 kg, her B.P. was 110/80 mm Hg, but there were no proteins or sugar on routine urine analysis. Her cardiovascular, respiratory and gastro-intestinal systems were examined and they were all normal. In view of her history of SLE and persistent pyrexia she was admitted in the hospital for the baseline investigations and to control the flare up of the disease. The following investigations and to control the flare up of the disease. The following investigations were carried out: Hb:8.5 gms/dl, blood group B positive, platelet count 339 into 10 to the power 9/liter, peripheral smear showed hypochromia++, ESR 44mm. 75 grams load glucose tolerance test



MUTERAMERAD AND AND CHORAR SAIMA SAMI

(GTT) was carried out, because she had a family history of diabetes mellitus and she was taking corticosteroids. The result was of an impaired GTT. A mid stream specimen of urine was tested for culture and sensitivity, which revealed a growth of klebsiella sensitive to various antibiotics but particularly to augmenting. In the ward, she was treated with I/V augmenting.

Anti-nuclear antibody (ANA) and anti double stranded DNA titres were repeated to re-confirm the diagnosis and they both were found to be positive. Her general condition improved and the condition settled within 5 days and she was discharged home on oral augmenting (375mgs tds) which she took for 14 days. On discharge she was given advice about diet with regard to impaired GTT and she was prescribed with oral iron therapy for the treatment of anemia.

She had ultrasonogram (USG) at 7 weeks gestation which corresponded with her duration of gestation and confirmed the expected date of confinement to be the same as calculated by the last menstrual period.

The pregnancy progressed well till 20 weeks when she had another rise in temperature with marked rash on her face. A repeat mid-stream specimen of urine for culture and sensitivity was advised which revealed a growth of staph. Aureus which was once again sensitive to augmenting and she was treated accordingly. The dose of deltracortril was increased to 2 in the morning and 1 in the evening which was previously 1h.d. The temperature settled within 4 days. From there on, she progressed well till 24 weeks when the temperature went up once again. A medical opinion was sought at this stage. She was prescribed deltacortril 2 b.d. for 3 days, 2 in the morning and 1 1/2 in the evening for 3 days and then 2 in the morning and 1 in the evening, to which she responded well. A repeat USG was requested at this stage which revealed a satisfactory growth. It was at 28 weeks gestation when once again she developed urinary tract infection (UTI) and this time the causative organism was E. Coli which was sensitive to velosef to which she responded very well.

It was 32 weeks gestation when it was first realized that the fundal height was lagging behind the duration of gestation and the doubt of intra uterine growth retardation came up. An USG was requested which was re-assuring and it revealed a satisfactory growth. At this stage her blood sugar

fasting was 87 mg./dl. and Hb. was 10.3 gms/dl. fasting was on of IUGR persisted at 36 weeks gestation but the USG was once again reassuring with a minor difference of 1 week. A non-stress test (CTG) was carried out to assess the fetal wellbeing, which was reactive with a good beat to beat variability and accelerations in response to fetal movements. A repeat USG was corried out a week later which showed no growth over scan with regard to BPD and showed a cordant growth with abdominal circumference BPD) =35/36 weeks and abdominal circumfer c 32-33 weeks) confirming the diagnosis of asy actrical IUGR. The estimated fetal weight at t stage was 1810 grams. The patient complained of reduced fetal movements as well. The situation was discussed with the paediatrician and the decision was taken to deliver her, on the basis of the facts that the patient complained of reduced fetal movements, there was no growth on USG over a period of 1 week, an asymmetrical growth retardation was confirmed and there was maternal weight loss of 2 kg over last 2 weeks. Her B.P remained normal throughout the pregnancy and there was no evidence of renal involvement except from having repeated attacks of UTI.

Delivery

An elective lower segment caesarean section was performed at 37 weeks gestation, in the presence of a paediatrician. A male baby weighing 1.9 kg. was delivered with an apgar score of 8/10 at 1 minute and 10/10 at 5 minutes alongwith complete placenta and membranes.

Her delivery period was covered with I/V steroid therapy, i.e., 100 mgs hydrocortisone 6 hourly which was given till she was able to take oral diet, when she was switched back to to oral dose which she was taking during pregnanc

The patient made a good recover from anesthesia and remained very well uring immediate puerperium. She was kept und close observation for first 4 post-operative days to letect any exacerbation in her medical condition at an earlier stage. She was shifted to the ward on 5th post operative day, when she was feeling perfectly normal. Her sutures were removed on the 6th post operative day and the patient was discharged on she was out of danger.

Baby

The baby was received by the paediatrician at delivery and was thoroughly examined. He had no skin lesions and there was no evidence of a heart block or any structural cardiac abnormalities. The only positive finding in the baby suggestive of neonatal lupus syndrome was a prolonged jaundice in the 2nd and 3rd week of his life and some evidence of thrombocytopenia which was promptly treated by the paediatrician and the baby recovered from this problem in a very short period of time.

Discussion

The diagnosis of SLE is made in patients having at least 4 of the features noted by the American Rheumatism Association, either simultaneously or following each other (table 1). In this case, fortunately the diagnosis was already established when she presented to us. A repeat ANA and anti double stranded DNA antibody titres were carried out to double check the diagnosis as the condition carries serious repercussions during pregnancy particularly in the puerperium, where it can lead to maternal death due to pulmonary haemorrhage and lupus pneumonitis.

Table 1: American Rheumatism Association criteria for the diagnosis of SLE.

- 1. Discoid lupus.
- Photosensitivity-skin rash as a result of unusual reaction to sunlight.
- Facial butterfly rash.
- Non-crosive arthritis involving two or more peripheral joints.
- 5. Oral or nasopharyngeal ulceration.
- Proteinuria > 0.5 gms./day.
- 7. Pleurisy or pericarditis.
- 8. Psychosis or convulsions.
- One of: (a) Hemolytic anemia; (b) Leucopenia, wbc <4000/cubic mm on two or more occasions; (c) lymphopenia <1500/cubic mm on two or more occasions; (d) thrombocytopenia 100 000/cubic mm.
- Immunological disorder: (a) positive LE cell preparation; (b) antibody to native DNA in abnormal titre; (c) antibody to SM nuclear antigen; (d) chronic false positive syphilis serology for six months.
- 11. Antinuclear antibody in abnormal titre.

The condition is diagnosed when the patient exhibits at least 4 of the above features, either simultaneously or following each other.

During pregnancy, SLE has got higher chances of exacerbation than in a non-pregnant state³ and the exacerbations has been reported to be more common in women under the age of 30 years than above it⁴. The condition is often confused with precelampsia if the patient develops proteinuria and thrombocytopenia. It is not difficult to differentiate SLE from pre-ofas the later runs a more acute course of features summarized in table 1. Patients of involvement in this disease have bad prognet the fetus, as they tend to abort in late 20 carly 3rd trimester. This patient was fortuna, this regard that her blood pressure remained normal throughout pregnancy and there was no

evidence of renal involvement. She had recurrent attacks of UTI which were possibly due to her being on steroid therapy and it is a known fact that women are prone to develop UTI during pregnancy even when there is no complication and she is not under any medication.

A GTT in this patient was carried out as she gave a history of maternal diabetes mellitus. The result of impaired GTT was possibly a reflection of steroid therapy rather than gestational diabetes because it did not deteriorate with the progression of pregnancy and blood sugar levels in the late 2nd and 3rd trimesters were found to be normal. Her anemia responded very well to the oral iron therapy once the UTI was effectively treated.

The drugs which are used to treat SLE include paracetamol, salicylates and other NSAIDs, corticosteroids, anti-malarials such 35 hydroxychloroquine and azathioprine. Among the anti-rheumatics paracetamol is considered to be the safest drug during pregnancy. NSAIDs and salicylates are better avoided particularly within the 8 weeks prior to expected delivery because of their association with neonatal haemorrhage, due to their action in inhibiting platelet function. They have also been associated with pre-mature closure of the ductus arteriosus and pulmonary hypertension⁵. Chloroquine causes choroido retinitis in doses used in patients with SLE. Azathioprine has been associated with chromosomal breakdown. The thrombocytopenia associated with SLE has been shown to be successfully treated with a combination of I/V IgG and platelet transfusion resulting in a better feto-



MUTHININGS ATOMAC CHOREN SAME

maternal outcome*. This patient was not in need of any analgesic as she was not experiencing any joint pains. Her main problems were butterfly rash, photoseasitivity and pyrexia which were responsing very well to corricosteroids, though she needed antibiotics at several occasions to cover the UTL.

Long term steroid therapy can cause acute adrenal failure under any stressful condition. The labour/delivery in such patients must be covered with parenterial steroids? For this reason, this potient was given 100 mgs, hydrocortisone 1/M 6 hourty, till she was able to take any oral medication.

Although the association of SLE with first trimester abortion has been described in hterature⁴, the babies of such mothers are typically at a risk of late abortion and premature labour, complete heart block & structural cardiac abnormalities, IUGR and intra uterine death. The risk of fetal loss is particularly high in women with anticardiolipin antibodies". At birth they can exhibit a neonatal lupus syndrome, which includes hematological complications (hemolytic anemia, leucopenia and thrombocytopenia), cardiac abnormalities, babies in whom discoid skin lesions are present as the only abnormality and neonates who develop SLE in the absence of any involvement in the mother. In this case the fetal growth and well being was very closely monitored through repeated USG and cardiotocogram (CTG). There was no evidence of any structural carchae abnormality and heart block. The fetal growth was satisfactory till the early 3rd trimester when the suspicion rose about IUGR and it was confirmed to be an asymmetrical growth retardation at 37 weeks gestation. The decision of delivery at this stage was taken in consultation with the paediatric department, when it was considered that the intrancrine environment is more unfavourable than the extra-uterine environment. This decision was based on the fact that the ineidence of hyaline membrane disease is lower in babies showing asymmetrical IUGR. The decision of elective delivery by caesarean section was taken as it was thought, that the baby may not be able to tolerate the stress of labour and the

PARIS AN ALTORA

benefit of the expertise of a senior pacdiateical would be available during morning hours. This baby showed prolonged jaundice and thrombocytopenia as the only evidence of neonatal hupus syndrome which was successfully treated

The lesson which we have learned from the case and can recommend to others is that the difficult conditions can be easily managed with a better maternal and fetal outcome, if we feel to hesitation in working in collaboration with our sister departments like we did by involving the medical and paediatric departments.

References

- Jones-WR. Autoimmune disease and pregnancy. Aust-N-Z-J-Obstet-Gynaecol. 1994 Jun; 34 (3). 251-8.
- 2 Di-W, Pan-JX, Hong-SY, Correlation Between outcome of pregnancy and condition of the disease at conception in SLE woman. Chung-Hua-Fo-Chan-Ko-Tsa-Chili. 1994 Jul. 29 (7), 414-6, 443-6
- Alekberova-ZS, Kosheleva-NM, Belitskaia-56, Marichik -NV. Monitoring the activity of SLE during pregnancy. Ter-Arkh. 1994; 66 (10) 46-51
- Tarceva-IE, Filmonova-RG, lanushkevub-TN Effect of pregnancy on the course of SLE Klin-Med-Mosk. 1994; 72 (5): 40-3.
- 5 Ostesen M. Optimism of anti-Rheumatic drug treatment in pregnancy Clin-Pharmacokinet. 1994 Dec, 27 (6): 486-503.
- LI-EK, LI-CY, Chohen -MG. SLE associated thrombocytopenia in pregnancy, successful outcome with combined IgG infusion and plateles transfusion. Br-J-Clin-Pract. 1994 Nov-Dec; 47 (6): 338-9.

 De Swiet M. Systemic Lupus Erythematosus and other connective tissue diseases. In: de Swiel M editor. Medical disorders in obstetric Oxford bluckwell scientific publications 1992; 408-425

- Derksen-RH, Bruinse-HW, de-Groot-PG, Kater-L Pregnancy in SLE: a prospective study Lupus 1994 Jun; 3 (3): 149-55.
- De-Carolis-S, Caruso-A, Ferrazzani-S Cardoxi-B, De-Santis-L, Mancuso-S. Poor pregnancy accesse and anti-cardiolipin Ab. Fetal-Diagn-Ther. 1994 Sep-Oct, 9 (5): 296-9.

PULMONARY TUBERCULOSIS CASE MANAGEMENT BY PRIVATE MEDICAL PRACTITIONERS IN GOWALMANDI, LAHORE

MUHAMMAD ABBAS QARI, MAQSOOD AHMAD, MUHAMMAD AMIR KHAN, SHAZIA ISHAQ, AYUB ALI Institute of Public Health, Lahore. Association for Social Development Islamabad.

A survey of the Private Medical Practitioners (PMPs) was done regarding pulmonary tuberculosis case management with the help of a structured questionnaire and an observation checklist. Regarding diagnosis, 41.7% practitioners termed cough as the major symptom and only 4.2% were recommending sputum smear examination for diagnostic purpose. Twenty two different types of prescriptions were stated by 24 private medical practitioners. Only 8.3% doctors claimed to be familiar with National Tuberculosis Program (NTP) guidelines. No doctor was following standard NTP guidelines of treatment. Duration of therapy varied from 6 to 12 months. Treatment failure cases were mainly referred to private hospitals. No doctor was maintaining any record of their TB patients and most of the doctors were not taking any default action for defaulting cases.

Introduction

Tuberculosis is the largest cause of death from a single infectious agent in the world killing nearly three million people every year¹. The disease accounted for 3.4% of all disability adjusted life years lost globally in the year 1990² and the increasing linkage of TB with HIV positive cases underlines the need for immediate action for control of the disease. The projected rapid rise in HIV prevalence in Asia, adds to the urgency of TB. control in the region³. As per WHO estimates, more than 0.3 million of new cases of TB. develop in Pakistan every year, three quarters of which are concentrated in the productive age group leading to disproportionate effect on economic and social life.⁴

Traditionally tuberculosis control activities has been focused on public sector where as private sector has expanded tremendously in Pakistan and studies have revealed that a great majority of Tuberculous patients attend PMPs before visiting any public sector health facility.⁵ But very little is known about the quality of TB care offered by the PMPs. Great variation in TB case management by PMPs has been revealed in a study conducted in India.⁶ On the basis of similarities in the prevailing circumstances, the same mode of practice is hypothesized in Pakistan. Where as the National Tuberculosis Program is based on the understanding that effective case management (i.e. diagnosis, treatment and follow up) is the only measure likely to have a significant effect on TB. control for the foresceable future.⁷

Under the circumstances where more than two thirds of the TB. patients attend PMPs before approaching any government health facility and we do not exactly know the quality of care being provided in TB case management by PMPs, TB control efforts are unlikely to be successful. Better understanding of the situation concerning the capabilities and practices for TB case management by PMPs is a step towards enhancing role of PMPs in TB control. This was the logic behind this study.

Methodology

The study was a qualitative investigation to gain insights into the knowledge and practice of PMPs and the intent was not to provide any statistically valid data on PMPs. It was conducted in an urban area i.e.; Gowalmandi. This locality is approximately 4 Sq.Kms and lies in the center of Lahore about 3 -4 Kms. south - west of Lahore railway station. The area is mainly of low socio-economic group people and is densely packed.

Study population included all PMPs practicing in Gowalmandi area. PMP was defined as a "licensed physician, practicing western medicine, providing clinical services either on a part-time or

PULMONARY TUBERCULOSIS CASE MANAGEMENT

full time basis, at their own premises or at the patients home".

Study tools included an interview questionnaire and an observation checklist focusing on following areas:

- Physician profile.
- Clinic facilities.
- Existing access and utilization of facilities.
- Knowledge, diagnosis and treatment of TB.

A list of all doctors practicing in study area was prepared by a field survey. There were 28 private medical practitioners in the area. Out of these 28 doctors, 12 doctors were doing practice both in the morning and evening, 14 doctors were practicing at evening time and 2 at morning time only. Out of 28 practitioners (PMPs), 25 were males and 3 were females. 3 female doctors and 1 male doctor stated that they were not dealing with the cases of Pulmonary Tuberculosis. So study was based on interview of 24 doctors and observation of 24 clinics Each PMP was visited by a surveyor and interviewed with the help of a structured questionnaire and clinic facilities were observed with the help of a checklist.

Findings

Clinic Facilities

At 17 clinics (70.8%) weight machine was available and at 15 clinics the machines were in working order. At 3 clinics (12.5%) X-ray plant was available and at 5 clinics (20.8%) laboratory was available. At 3 labs (12.5%) reagents for sputum examination were available and sputum smear examination was being done. Distribution of X-ray plant and laboratories was interesting. Two clinics (8.3%) had both X-ray plant and laboratory equipped with sputum smear examination facilities. One clinic had only X-ray plant, the other one had only laboratory available. The other important point was that none of the doctors in charge of these facilities were using them in the diagnosis of TB as a routine.

Patient Management

Doctors were having different duration of practice ranging from 3 months to 46 years with a mean practice duration of 14.8 years. At the time of study 15 doctors had TB patients under their treatment which ranged from 1 patient to many patients.

Diagnostic Criteria

Symptoms and Signs: Ten doctors (41.7%) labeled' cough' as a major symptom of pulmonary tuberculosis, while 7 doctors (29.2%) labeled 'lever', 3 doctors (12.5%) labeled 'weight loss', 2 doctors (8.3%) labeled' loss of appetite' and one doctor (4.2%) labeled 'lymphadenopathy' as major symptom of pulmonary tuberculosis. While stating multiple symptoms of pulmonary tuberculosis, 9 doctors (37.5%) did not mention cough as a symptom. One doctor (4.2%) stated "cough has no value as regards the symptoms of pulmonary tuberculosis". One doctor labeled diabetes mellitus' as a symptom of TB. History and physical examination was stated as the first step towards diagnosis of TB by 100% doctors.

50

first investigation Investigations: As a towards diagnosis one doctor (4.2%) recommended sputum smear examination stating that it had more diagnostic value. Sixteen doctors (66.7%) recommended 'X-ray chest' which they thought was more specific and 6 doctors (25%) recommended 'blood test' as the first step in diagnostic process putting more diagnostic value on it. One doctor (4.2%) recommended mantouxs test as the first step.

Treatment practices

Prescription: When practitioners were asked to give prescription for a new adult case of pulmonary tuberculosis, 24 doctors gave 22 different type of prescriptions. The prescriptions differed in the type of drug regimen and, or duration of treatment. The duration of treatment ranged from 6 months to 12 months.

Two doctors (8.3%) were prescribing 5 drug therapy, 13 doctors (54.2%) 4 drugs therapy and 8 doctors (33.3%) were prescribing 3 drugs therapy for a new case of pulmonary tuberculosis. One doctor was giving different types of prescription, ranging from 2 drugs to 4 drugs.

Four doctors (16.7%) mentioned doses of all drugs included in the prescription while 5 doctors (20.8%) mentioned doses partially i.e. only doses of 1 or 2 drugs included in the prescription were noted. None of the PMPs mentioned the drug regiments in line with NTP standard.

Antituberculosis drugs were dispensed (drugs issued from the clinic) at 2 clinics (8.3%) only while at 22 clinics (91.7%) prescription was given to



patient and the drugs were being purchased from market.

Inj. Streptomycine was prescribed by 5 doctors (20.8%) which is only injectable antituberculosis available. Two doctors mentioned dose of 1 gm/day and 3 doctors did not mention the dose. Duration of streptomycine therapy was variable i.e. for one month by one doctor, for 2 months by one doctor, for 3 months by one, for 3 - 6 months by one and for a period of 6 months by the last one.

INH was prescribed by all (100%) doctors for total duration of treatment. Six doctors mentioned dose of INH but only one doctor mentioned according to prescribed NTP standard.

Rifampacin was prescribed by 22 doctors (91.7%) for the total duration of treatment. Seven

doctors mentioned dose of rifampacin but only one mentioned according to the NTP standard.

Pyrazinamide was prescribed by 20 doctors (83.3%). Nineteen doctors were starting this drug at the beginning of treatment while one doctors was adding this drug for the last 4 months of treatment. Ten doctors recommended this drug for the total duration of treatment while 9 doctors recommended discontinuation with a time range of 1 - 3 months. Five doctors mentioned dose of pyrazinamide and none mentioned according to NTP standards.

Health education

No doctor was giving any specific type of health education to TB patients or their relatives.

was doctor monitoring: No Treatment sputum progress by treatment examination as recommended by NTP. One doctor was monitoring treatment progress by blood tests and sputum examination every 2 weeks until patient was sputum negative. 10 doctors were monitoring treatment progress by X-ray chest at different intervals of treatment while 4 doctors did so by blood examination. Rest of the doctors were monitoring treatment progress by physical response and improvement of symptoms

Default action: Three doctors were taking default action for TB defaulter cases. They were taking this action through the patients, relatives and friends.

Patient Records

No doctor was maintaining any type of patient

Referral practices;

Out of 14 doctors who were recommending sputum smear examination in the process of diagnosis of TB case, 9 doctors were referring the cases to private labs, 3 doctors were doing this test at their own clinics and only one doctor was referring the TB cases to Govt. Health facilities for sputum smear examination. One doctor did not state his choice of referral.

Out of 23 doctors who were recommending Xray chest in the process of diagnosis of TB case, 17 doctors were referring the cases to private X-ray centers, 3 doctors were conducting X-rays at their own clinics, 2 doctors were referring to Govt. Health Facilities and one doctor did not state his choice of referral.

The reasons stated by most of doctors for choice of private x-ray centers and private laboratories were:

- (i) More feasible.
- (ii) Results are better.
- (iii) Faith of people.

The doctors who were referring to Govt. Health facilities for lab. investigations and X-ray chest stated only economic reasons of their referral,

All the doctors who were referring the TB patients in the process of diagnosis and or treatment were referring the cases only for investigation purpose except one doctor who was referring them both for investigations and consultation.

In case of suspected treatment failure, 15 doctors (62.5%) were referring the TB cases to private health facilities (mainly to Ghulab Devi Hospital, Lahore) for case management. Remaining 9 doctors (37.5%) were managing the suspected treatment failures on their own.

NTP orientation

Two doctors (8.3%) claimed to be familiar with NTP guidelines but their prescriptions were not according to the recommendations of NTP. None of them was familiar with the concept of S.C.C (Short Course Chemotherapy) and DOF (Directly Observed Therapy).

Discussion

The results of this study show that the case management of pulmonary tuberculosis by PMPs is not in line with the guidelines of the NTP. Most of the doctors interviewed did not give importance to the symptom of 'cough more than 3 weeks' (a major



PULMONARY TUBERCULOSIS CASE MANAGEMENT

symptom of a case of pulmonary tuberculosis) for diagnosis. Very few doctors were recommending sputum examination prior to other procedures. Most of the doctors were recommending X-ray chest. This over dependence of private doctors on X-ray chest as the diagnostic tool for the pulmonary tuberculosis is note worthy. This may lead to overdiagnosis, over-medication and wastage of short course chemo-therapeutic drugs on patients who may not be needing such treatment[8]. Use of sputum examination for confirmation of clinical diagnosis of pulmonary tuberculosis by only 1 doctor highlights not only their ignorance of value of this simple test but also their indifference to the public health implications of the sputum status of TB patient⁸. Another probable explanation for this over dependence on X-ray for diagnosis may be, being more expensive, the X-ray could prove to be financially more viable to the referring doctors than a cheaper sputum examination especially in cases when there is some financial understanding between the doctor and diagnostic center. This may also be the reason why most of the doctors prefer private diagnostic centers for investigations and X-rays in contrast to government health facilities, where both of these tests are offered free of cost.8

Most of the private doctors, irrespective of their training, use modern ground and back chemotherapeutic agents in the treatment of pulmonary tuberculosis. It is very difficult to find a scientific rationale for each of the 22 different regimens employed by 24 private doctors. The use doses of antitubercular drugs of correct recommended by NTP is also very important and no doctor mentioned recommended doses of all antitubercular drugs included in their own prescription. No doctor is aware about short course chemotherapy and its two phases of treatment i.e. continuation phase. phase and intensive Streptomycin use is irregular i.e. used by one doctor for 1 months whereas by one upto 6 months. Rifampacin use is not according to guidelines of NTP which suggests that rifampacin containing regimen should not be allowed to be taken domicilliary and should be given as DOT to avoid its resistance but none of the PMP was observing this strategy. Continuous use of pyrazinamide was who included doctors 50% advocated by pyrazinamide in their regimen although efficacy of pyrazinamide in continuation phase of short course chemotherapy is yet to be established.9 Those who

PAKISTAN JOURNAL OF HEALTH VOL. 34 NO. 1 - 2

use this drug for initial period, their recommended period was not according to NTP guidelines.

Monitoring of treatment progress is very poc-

and not according to the NTP guidelines. None of the doctors is monitoring TB treatment by sputum smear examination as recommended by NTP and no one is maintaining any type of record for their under treatment TB patients. Same situation was observed for initiation of default action against treatment defaulters

These facts point towards a serious situation of lack of knowledge and awareness among doctors practicing in the study area about the nationally recommended drug regimens to be used in the treatment of pulmonary tuberculosis. This situation not only reveals the ignorance PMPs about important advances on national level in the treatment of a very highly prevalent disease but also reflects absence of communication between those involved in the implementation of disease control activities and the practicing doctors. The planners and policy makers must take immediate measures to develop communication channels with PMPs and there by involve them in TB control activities, if they really need a success.

- The State of World Health The World Health Report 1995: Geneva, WHO, 1995: 21-22.
- World Bank. The World Development Report 1993: 2 Investing in Health. Oxford University Press, 1993.
- Kochi A. Tuberculosis Program, WHO, Geneva, 3. Immunobiology 1994; 19 (4 - 5): 325 - 36.
- 4. Directorate of Tuberculosis Control. National Guidelines for Tuberculosis Control in Pakistan Islamabad, Federal Ministry of Health, 1995: 1-2.
- 5. Association for Social Development. Qualitative study on tuberculosis patients at TB center Rawalpindi. Preliminary report 1996.
- 6. Uplekar MW & Shepard DS. Treatment of tuberculosis by private general practitioners in India. Tubercle 1991; 72: 284 - 90.
- Rodrigues LC & Smith PG. Tuberculosis in developing countries and methods for its control. Tractions of the Royal Society of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene, 1990; 84: 739 - 44.
- Upleaker et al "Private doctors and tuberculosis in India" Tubercle and Lung Diseases 1993; 74: 332 -336
- Upleaker et al "Treatment of tuberculosis by private general practitioners in India" Tubercle 1991: 72-285